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GENERAL INFORMATION

Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda and the address
of its principal place of business is 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
shown in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group incurred
a net loss of approximately HK$106.460 million and as
of that date, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
approximately HK$185.051 million.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group
and the ability of the Group to continue to attain profitable
and positive cash flows from operations in the immediate
and longer terms.

Included in current liabilities are bank borrowings of
HK$473.876 million which contain a repayment on
demand clause. Based on the Group’s credit history and
historical relationship with the banks, the directors of
the Company do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will demand immediate repayment but rather such
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with their
scheduled repayment dates as disclosed in Note 6(a)(iv).
Accordingly, principal and interest payments due within
the next twelve months from the reporting date amounted
to HK$234.876 million.

In order to strengthen the Group’s liquidity in the
foreseeable future, the directors of the Company have taken
measures such as closing down under-performing retail
stores and implementing various cost control measures
to reduce the costs of operations. The Group continues
with the implementation of the aforementioned measures
in order to achieve further improvement of the Group’s
liquidity in short term and long-term periods.

The directors of the Company have taken into account the
cash requirements of the Group for the next twelve months
commencing from the end of the reporting period. With
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$82.668
million as at 31 March 2022, other potential sources of
funding, and continued adoption of the above measures,
the directors have therefore concluded that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to fully meet its
financial obligations when they fall due. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phrase 2

In addition, the Group has early applied the
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. AW RLIETEBMEREER )

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@ Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (@ EAFITRELETEBUMBREER

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The Group previously applied the practical expedient
in HKFRS 16 such that as lessee it was not required
to assess whether rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic were
lease modifications, if the eligibility conditions are
met (see note 4(l). One of these conditions requires
the reduction in lease payments affect only payments
originally due on or before a specified time limit.
The 2021 amendment extends this time limit from 30
June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021 amendment
in this financial year. With the extended time limit,
the additional rent concessions received after 30 June
2021 have been accounted for as negative variable
lease payments recognised in income statement
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers those payments occurred (see Note 10).
There is no impact on the opening balance of equity
at 1 April 2021.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. AW RLEBITEBMEREER )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) CHEMEEKREMNTITIREIETE
effective BRI MR E R
Other than the amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 PR ASAEHT & s S i A HE I SE 165
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, the A20214F6 H 30 H £ B8 e 85 50w
Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs (COVID-19) M B3 S b - AL
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the 37 4 URE F iR 202144 0 1 HBH 4R
financial year beginning 1 April 2021. These new Z S BUA FEE R 1 R AR 8RR T
and revised HKFRSs include the following which Lo REAE W] A s A B i i MR U] o RS R
may be relevant to the Group. R B KEAG R 7 i B 5 i o Y R B4 LA

AT REBLA Y FIAR B AY A o

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RELTN ARz %
R ET B AR
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual 1 April 2022
Framework
RENE AT A 8 B B 5 M R 2 3 5% WS HESL A $ AL 2022%F4H1H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: 1 April 2022
proceeds before intended use
BT HE G RHERS 1698 Wi ~ W S - e i 20224F4H1H
HiT 9 B 430
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of 1 April 2022
fulfilling a contract
R A Er R ER 3 7% TR EH — BT R Z WA 20224F4H1H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 April 2022
2018-2020 Cycle
7 s 5 e ot YR B4R T 2 01 84F 2 20224F4H1TH
20204 2 31
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as 1 April 2023
current or non-current
RAERT A Gt RIS 58 B BRI B R 20234471 H
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BT RLETEBMEREER )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) CHEMENRERNFITIREETE
effective (Continued) BB EER )

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RELT Rim z %
MBS HREER
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial 1 April 2023
Statements and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements —
Disclosure of Accounting
Policies
RAEFTEBERHERRE 1R S o 1Y 2 R 7 s P 20234F4H1H

7 3 QBB R 2 A
B — TR R
Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes 1 April 2023
in Accounting Estimates
and Errors — Definition of
Accounting Estimates

RAEFT A Gt RIS 85T ERHBOR ~ SRt A o 20234471 H
B — G TR IER
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred 1 April 2023

Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a
Single Transaction
RERT R g RHERIS 1298 Pt — BB A AE B A A 1 202344 1H
TEE A1 B A B P AR SE L T

The Group is in the process of making an assessment A [ B IE 3 5% 5 T M A A T HE R
of what the impact of these amendments and new JARII A IR 309 [H] T30 o BB 5 BT
standards is expected to be in the period of initial APAf o H AT E AT H A PRI SFYE
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption ISR B 5 R 3R 7 A EE K B ]
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on AEMEMR A o

the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g.
investment properties and certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

(@ Business Combination

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity. When
assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@

Business Combination (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the income
statement and statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@)

Business Combination (Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the income statement. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associated company, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the income
statement or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

J equity interests issued by the Group
o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@

Business Combination (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:

. consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity over the
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement as
a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESHBEE
(b) Separate financial statements (b) BIYBMBHRR
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost A B JE 2 ) 1) 5 4% AR B ek (B 51
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable WE o BUAS IR 46 8 & 19 B 42 E AL %
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are A o AN TG R s F I SE AR AR R E
accounted for by the Company on the basis of s R RSB AR

dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries ik 17 B g 2 ) ) 5 7 A TR R A
is required upon receiving dividends from these WA Jag 2> ) IR A S 1 2 T S A
investments if the dividend exceeds the total AR B 5% S B0 R 8 S B R
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the TAT 14 U TR (0 2 430 3 R (L
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying (BOHE P &) R &5 G WS R A A BR T
amount of the investment in the separate financial (8 > R SR 5% 55 IS R ZE 3 72 5 4
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the EOEAT I E R -

financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

() Segment reporting () ZDHEEHE
Operating segments are reported in a manner B YR WAt gy Bl A
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the PR R AR 2 O 2

chief operating decision-maker.

The Company has appointed the executive directors AN A B BARATECE 5 5 E A Tk
as the chief operating decision makers to review the R > HE RS HEE R AL M
operating results of the Group on a consolidated EHEER - WAR RIS RE -

basis, and makes strategic decisions.

(d) Foreign currency translation d) HEwE
(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) RERBHENE

Items included in the financial statements of A B2 [T 8 1S 2 S R
each of the Group’s entities are measured RTEEZHE - B ER
using the currency of the primary economic ZEEEEM R BHFE
environment in which the entity operates (the UL T RE B o ARG BB IR
“functional currency”). The financial statements KTV EH - B AARL
are presented in HK$, which is the functional A2 U KA B
currency of the Company and presentation W o

currency of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EERIHBER G
(d)  Foreign currency translation (Continued) d) HNEEBmE E)
(i) Transactions and balances (i)  XHREEE

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated income statement. All foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “other
gains, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair values
are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. For example, translation differences on
nonmonetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) are recognised in
income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets/
equity investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESHBER )

SNESIRE ()

(d)  Foreign currency translation (Continued) (d)

(i) ZEEE T2 A

63

(iii)  Group companies

The results and balance sheet of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

o income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities, and of borrowings, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate their cost to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

Leasehold land Shorter of remaining lease term
or useful life

Buildings Shorter of the unexpired lease
term or 20 to 50 years

Equipment and leasehold 3 to 10 years or over the lease

improvements term
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 15 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement within “Other (losses)/gains, net”.
Valuations are performed to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements
in the revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual
transfer from the revaluation reserve to retained
profits is made for the difference between the
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s
original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained earnings as a movement in reserves.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

4.

ETESHBE A

(e)

VI3 - MR RRE )

ik 7 2 R T (L A0 LAl T i ]
A > P FL R TR (L1 RO Bl 2 T i [l
B -

A 2 18 45 4 LU I P A K I B 1
EREE > et ASR G a2 [ HA O
18) Weas o FER o P AR
S AET I E R E A E R A
FoAE (R B AR T < RN O o
FOON Fo (e 5 B+ 7 ol 1 2 58 )
B o DUBE— ¥ S B USRS
Y BB A L DU AR 7 > B R
WG RT AR R A o AT HAR AL
L BR ¥ ST AT O TR AR R A A
2 o MR 1O B Al R T (LB 5 BELAR
BEEEVIG A T8 2 R 2250
AR T R AR 2R A A o 72
B ELAG AR o SERT OB A
it F O A B A8 20 - A o ik 58 Bl
PREAZA -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Investment properties

Investment properties principally leasehold land and
buildings are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at fair value at the date of transfer
from property, plant and equipment. Differences
between the costs and fair values of the properties
are recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequently,
they are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in consolidated income statement as
part of other income.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed
cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its
fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy as disclosed in Note 4(e) up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value
of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy as disclosed in Note
4(e). For a transfer from inventories to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of
the property at that date and its previous carrying
amount is recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Goodwill

Goodwill is subsequently measured as
disclosed in Note 4(j). Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life and are not amortised but tested
annually for impairment.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The technical know-how has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 30 years.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

4.

FEGTEEE )
(@ BEEE
(i) R

(i)

(iii)

A 2R B4 ) BT AR B o
i i 28 ) 2 i AT
B o EAT Y e
AEAEAT B ELIRE - f  B
e o 15 38 % T O B
(B0 > T A0 0 7 2,
L% A W2 1 R
B o RO s R
1A B T A0 7 R
8 -

7 3 0 ek Y 20 L B
EELRAL - ALY E
S0 505 52 T A AR TR WS S
DF B0 B 4 AR RO BB < A
B AL AR o 52 A B B
A7 AL T i v w8 B H A B
5 B e KR AR ) o B A

5 -

it

S0 A ) 7 4 B o A 91
B o B A R 40
FLURHRSH - (FLJE 45 4 R
TR -

BURLETT

TE 55 & F b IS (19 S 11l
T WS 4 P (E AR o
SEB AT B AT IR > 3 3% 6L
Al 2w AR o S Y fi
FHE BRI T B SE I Y
AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in income statement.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net

amount reported in the balance sheet when there is

a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised

amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into

arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy

or the termination of a contract.

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in two
categories:

o financial assets at amortised cost; and

J financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets
are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTBEHE)

TRTAZEARKILER @)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial (h)
instruments (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group classifies its financial assets at
amortised cost only if both of the following
criteria are met:

. the financial asset is held within a
business model with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows; and

(1)

&R E ()
B A R <

) W A2 L F 5
S L A S
T4V

o ERMEREREWIRGF B
SRS H RS
[EESRELTAES

e the contractual terms give rise on o BRMERIERE H A
specified dates to cash flows that are F B 4 i L A AR e A
solely payments of principal and interest RERASFER AT -

on the principal outstanding.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
includes trade and other receivables, deposit
and bank balances.

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (Equity
investment)

The Group makes an election to designate its
equity investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through
income statement. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in income statement as other
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@i

()

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition.
The Group must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the asset’s previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(N

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for all debt instruments not held
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(]

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1: Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2: Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL.

Stage 3:  Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

4. FESHBE@®D

()

TREERE#R
— Ty ()

ALEHIG & A a0 B i B &
FERVERER) o JRTH > R TIEOLT
"Wy AR B R RS A 4 R T e
TEASSE B BRI A 5 B4R T 22 PR 2
S ] R AR 5 4 B EIRE - AR SR TR
FIRERD M % B B AR A o M ERE A
HF A W G A B i o A
BSEFE o

e 8 PR AS A MR 2 B s AR —
7 3 WA % R R WSk o SRR A
o fdi ik oh > HAE LU B By B
HE SRR

BB —PEBE - A5 SmBR B W)U RR AR I
SR W I ) e T AL
Hk BB ER 1210
H 5 S R &85

EO

F A SRR DU R AR K
i 8 o {ELSIG 2 L B BB
R EBEN M T
Ul 1R 45 4 2 5 R 4 B
IE S RN S

DR B BB S
(B 0 85 i (ELAE
Y A 2 BRI E £ B O
{B) > HokH 8 1% 50
I EIE SR &8

A

B () A RA A
2022 FFAFHR

74



75

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(N

U]

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant
financing component, if any, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. ETEESTHBEKR )
()  Leases (Continued) N MHEFHE
(i) The Group as a lessee (i) AEEHELAHN

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred.

Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, except for the right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property are
carried at fair value.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FESTEEKR )
()  Leases (Continued) " HEHE
(i) The Group as a lessee (Continued) (i) AEEELAN ()

(ir)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in income statement if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
properties and lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Inventories

Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and
subcontracting fee. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. Provision for inventories are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
within “other operating expenses”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of watch products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EEETBERAH#A
(@ Contract liabilities (@ EHaE
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer BRI E IR AEF C & S O
goods or services to a customer for which the 15 (b A R 2 2100 1 28 1) % 5
Group has received a consideration (or an amount B U I AT o M T A
of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a V1 i I 5 B T I SRR
customer pays the consideration before the Group i A& A RTRRAE AT %R E
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract BIIRE (LR R 2 08 WD o B4R
liability is recognised when the payment is made or A SR B B AT & #IRF R 5 WL ©
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.
() Related parties (r BIAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: L ANAE T HVIED T - AR o Bl A £
A R g
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s @ A LBGEEA LT A
family is related to the Group if that person: A BAR
(i) has control or joint control of the Group; (i) BEAHEE A 1 R et
[l 2 il
(i) has significant influence over the Group; (i) B AL EEA E KR
or DA
(ili) is a member of the key management (i) A ] A 4 B0 ]
personnel of the Group or of a parent of ZEBEMERE
the Group;
Or iR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan and the sponsoring employers of the
postemployment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Sale of watch products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised

4.

ETEEFBE A

(s)

WA TR (4

(i) HEEEE

o 2 AR EE 2

at the point in time when control of the asset PE R T P R (— R 2
is transferred to the customer, generally on Bk IR) ERR

delivery of the products.

Some contracts for the sale of products provide HTHESHRTEFBRER

customers with rights of return and volume

rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates

give rise to variable consideration.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer
with a right to return the goods within
a specified period, the expected value
method is used to estimate the goods
that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled. The requirements
in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates
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included in the transaction price. For A o T3 HtIE 2 5 I E
goods that are expected to be returned, 2 RE R filE 52 4R £ RE & e
instead of revenue, a refund liability is (Slf7 36 8 5 1 AR A H A0 E
recognised. A right-of-return asset (and ) o

the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to
recover products from a customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)  Revenue recognition (Continued)

(1)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

Sale of watch products (Continued)
o Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be
provided to certain customers once the
quantity of products purchased during
the period exceeds a threshold specified
in the contract. Rebates are offset against
amounts payable by the customer. To
estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely
amount method is used that best predicts
the amount of variable consideration. The
requirements on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied and
a refund liability for the expected future
rebates is recognised.

The Group do not have expected future
volume rebates and no refund liability is
recognised as at 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021.

Other income

Building management services income and
shared services income are recognised when
the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

®

(u)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(v)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in income statement because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in income statement, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EEEFBEGR)
(u) Taxation (Continued) (w BB
The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities R SOE T T A R SR R R
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from AR A A T A [m] e A HL
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of B R v 1 2 Ty =K A 22 B
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 2o

amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for A G F R A AP (e
investment properties that are measured using the fair ZBEY R RIEEBUET - BRIk
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties B A B > 1 RIMERGE a% 55 W R
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless T L2 7 2 B T Y o BB
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is SEn e H A S ) EB R A
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable R > 52 E BB o A £ 1 A SE55 H
and is held within a business model of the Group TR B I (] 1 T RS B B A% S5 Y
whose business objective is to consume substantially KA 2 > AR Y % 5 W) 2
all of the economic benefits embodied in the AR IR L SR SE R BRI 45 o U SR A
investment property over time, rather than through FE B > R % 55 £ ) 3 A IR SE AL
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for TECHE AR5 AT B G e o [m] ) 2 4 FELIY O
such investment properties are measured based on At o

the expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions S TP 0 T R B g A AL B B B AO AHL
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group By - ALEEBIERER S N
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing T EFHEE 129 BLE o B
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences A AN FE B A R ) R A
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are TRRIEMEGTAY - BN E AN A S
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on TRy o T RE A I R R R A
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the bk <z R A R TECE R 2E EE
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net e

deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when BTG IEIAT R ATt R B
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current JAE BL RS T £ AR o Sl % B
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they — T 5 W R i 2 P AR A B LA
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation VA 5 e o AR A 5 B L B B T
authority and the Group intends to settle its current e f iy - IR AE B I A X A AT
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)  Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

S
4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTBEHE)

(v)  Employee benefits (Continued) v) EERANGE

(iii)  Employee leave entitlements

(iv)

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

(i) MRS IEF A

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the grant
will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period
to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate. Government grants that become
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a)  Going concern basis

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon future operational performance
and the expected future operating cash inflows;
and the continuous availability of banking facilities.
Details are explained in Note 2.

(b)  Significant increase in credit risk

The ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

(c)  Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.

BRYIE R EE T
FE PR S at BOR 2 B 5 A R

PR EORER D > EHRCFEHUT
g B R iR R A R
A F) BT (1 T SCUE B9 Al & ) B
4b)

(@ IFHACE R

PR 55 A T B R DR R AR A L e
A B AR IR A AR A K8 7
BMTEIA R AR KEEBLEWA 5 LK
AT RVE R R T o A BREE IR
BRI RS R RE2 R o

(b) 7B BRRE I

HIE BRI FHRETIAR B
BEERNHAE B RSN 1246 H
Y TR > 28 R BCE =B
T W1 TR £ Bl 48 12 B AR A A S T
R EERN B R - AR
RRAR > O B BB BT S ]
BAEMEASE B o A B RS
FUJ 565 9 S0 310 A 5] 2 5 5 J o 5
N A A B B4R B R 1 B
BN > AL S R AE B A
HLH AT SRR RTIE TR B, -

(€ EEHEFH

T BR i F 7R E 5 A A SR T AT AT fil
AU FERER AL R i A AR I - A4
VA AT ok AEUSE AR MR Y R REE -
Hh R B AR A AR A AT R A Y
TR B A AR B R R L - A
PR AT R A Sz A B
BB A I R B

B () A RA A
2022 FFAFHR

92



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

93

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

5.

B H & R E (D)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies RS BR 2 BR A E )
(Continued)
(c)  Determining the lease term (Continued) (c) FEEMEFH #E)

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in
other properties leases have not been included in the
lease liability because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.
See Note 29 for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is
a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the year, no lease term has been reassessed.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next year, are discussed below.

(@) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, the income tax was
charged to income statement disclosed in Note 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group assesses at least annually whether
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets exhibit any indications of impairment. The
recoverable amounts are determined based on value-
in-use calculation. The value-in-use calculation
involves estimating the future cash inflows and
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the
asset and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. The estimation of future cash
flows and selection of discount rate require the use
of judgements and estimates. Management believes
that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the
above key elements in the value-in-use calculation
would not result in material additional impairment
charges.

Further, the cash flows projections, growth rate and
discount rate are subject to greater uncertainties
in the current year due to uncertainty on how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and
volatility in retail markets.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 March
2022 were in Notes 17 and 19 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(c)  Fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including (1) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition
and location, adjusted to reflect those differences;
(2) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (3)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 March 2022 is disclosed in Note 18.

(d)  Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
have suffered any impairment. The Group reviews
goodwill for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the related carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amount has been determined based on higher of
value-in-use calculation and fair value less cost
of disposal. The calculation requires the use of
judgments and estimates.

Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount
rate are subject to higher degree of estimation
uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty
on how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and
evolve and volatility in retail markets.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March
2022 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

5.

B H & B E (A7)

fhEr RN EE 2 T ERIF ()

(c)

(d)

REYFEZ L

AL G AR A A MR IE 2 R
& - ()RR TS BRI R0
SRR W) SRV BRAE > 0 SRR A
SOMERZ A ZE R 5 ()R IRE T BRI
Wy SEHT R (B A - Sl A 9 R LA Rk
AR5 B REAT 2 5 HE R Y
AEATRE PR DL AL 5 B (3) AL A o

A20224E3 A31H > &YW EZ IEW
(B AT EE1 8R4 & -

P BR A o 1E

A 8] g P R S BB
A 0 ) R P (L o SRR AR
ol 15 DL 5 Bl B A ] B (A BE
W [m] g o 7R 7 Bl (2R o 25 R
BRI T - A o] < R A T R
A B AR TR 4 AR B B
[0}

LA o p 7 3 7 R R B R 15 A
o % (B 5 1) AN ke 5 P e 2 T 455 119 I
B > A% AR R B B U T U B A i
B S R R S A Al Al 1

202243 A31H > P22 MR (H M
7 IB8 7  mJ A B 4 R T R A (AR Y
EORHI B RE20 0 B FF -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e

Impairment of trademarks

Trademarks with an indefinite useful life are carried
at costs and are not amortised. Management tests
annually whether the trademarks suffered any
impairment by considering the economic benefit
to be generated from trademarks. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. This calculation used pre-tax cashflows
projections based on financial budgets prepared
by management. Management determined the
financial budget based on past performance and
its expectations for the future market development,
which involved significant judgment and estimates.

Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount
rate are subject to higher degree of estimation
uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty
on how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and
evolve and volatility in retail markets.

The carrying amount of trademarks as at 31 March
2022 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
() Deferred tax assets

The Group’s management determines the amount
of deferred tax asset to be recognised by estimating
the amount of future profit available to utilise the tax
losses or certain temporary differences in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The estimate is based
on the projected profit in respective jurisdiction
and entity and the Group uses its judgement to
make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing on balance sheet date. It could
change as a result of the uncertainties in the market
conditions.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets recognised
as at 31 March 2022 is disclosed in Note 28.

(g)  Fair value measurement

The Group’s unlisted equity investment was classified
as equity investment at FVTOCI and measure at fair
value using market approach with reference to the
price to earnings multiple of comparable companies
listed in the market. This valuation requires the
Group to make estimates about price to earnings
multiple, non-marketability discount, and hence they
are subject to uncertainty.

The fair value of the equity investment at FVTOCI as
at 31 March 2022 is disclosed in Note 21.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will reassess the estimations at
the balance sheet date.

The allowance for inventories was made for the year
ended 31 March 2022 is disclosed in Note 22.

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables
and contract assets based on the credit risk of trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured
as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being
revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of trade
receivables (net of impairment loss) is disclosed in
Note 23.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(@ Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
China and a number of countries in South
East Asia. Retail sales transactions are mostly
denominated in the functional currencies of
respective group entities. The Group's exposure
to foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure as mainly arising
from the exposure of the Singapore dollar,
Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht, Renminbi and
Swiss Franc against the Hong Kong dollar.
The Group regularly monitors its exposures to
foreign currency transactions.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HMBEBER )
(@)  Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ MBEBEE
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SFEEME S ()
The impact to the Group’s loss before tax that A B [ T 2 T B ) 9 T A I
might be resulted from the reasonable possible A G PR R] e A ) 1T 5 R B
changes in the foreign exchange rates against 7 £ ) A 5L I e 4R A A4 2 R
the Hong Kong dollar to which the Group BWE .

has significant exposure as at the end of the
reporting date is summarised below.

2022 2021

(Increase)/ (Increase)/

decrease decrease

Increase in loss Increase in loss

in foreign before in foreign before

exchange income exchange income

rate tax rate tax

MRELATE R W i e 12

SMNEE= (gm), A1 BEE i 23 #am ,

HY1E 0 m 3G W

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Singapore dollar Brmk oo 5% (874) 5% (871)

Malaysian ringgit FEARPYEE AT 5% (1,301) 5% (649)

Thai baht Fk 5% (5,424) 5% (5,581)

Renminbi N 5% 1,573 5% 1,708

Swiss franc B 158 5% 8,887 5% 8,550
Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates bt A1 BEE BE S 3 5% (2021
by 5% (2021: 5%) would affect the loss before B 1 5%) i B BR B A 1 E A

income tax by the same amount but in the AR B BEAEAR S T 1] B3 28

opposite direction.

B () A RA A
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6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE)
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ BIERMEZEE
(ii)  Interest rate risk (i) FIRE S

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets other than
bank balances as disclosed in Note 24. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings
as disclosed in Note 31. Bank borrowings
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2022, if interest rates of bank
borrowings at variable rates had been 50 basis
points (2021: 50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, loss before
income taxes would have been HK$2.369
million (2021: HK$2.564 million) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@) B¥EEREZE)

(iii)  Credit risk (i) 5 B

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets
(mainly include deposits with banks and trade
and other receivables) as disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group'’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or
effort, and year-end staging classification at the
end of reporting date. The amounts presented
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

S R 52 5 3 F 07 R REJEAT
FAL 51 B e 1R TR I 2 iR
KAGEE B AR A&7 e EE AR
RIS CHER M EE 2R
T > 3 B AL AE SRAT A7 s A K
B 5 B HAtE IR o

R MR 5 B EUR
G R AR B R MR R R
B > Bk 0 R R AR B85
i AT HETS A R > AR R
EREPUEIER > R H 2
SEAR ) B BT UL SR o 25
BT I BB B I IR T AR -

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ B¥EREZE)

(i)~ Credlit risk (Continued) (iii) 17 B 5 (FE)

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AR
FEFR 2HRAEEFR
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-[RE ERE BB kA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAT BRAT BEAT BEAT BRAT

2022 2022

Trade receivables (note a) PEMCR 3 (3 a) - - - 83,655 83,655

Financial assets included in G445 4 RILAbIENR

deposits and other IR e
receivables (note b) (F3E b) 61,619 - - - 61,619
Cashand cash equivalents ~ Bi4&: RBIA S (EH) 112,121 - - - 112,121
173,740 - - 83,655 257,395

2021 20214

Trade receivables (note a) FEQRR R (k@) - - - 79,404 79,404

Financial assets included in G445 4 R LA RENR

deposits and other IRAMI B e
receivables (note b) (F3E b) 78,420 - - - 78,420
Cashand cash equivalents ~ BL4: RBIA () 170,344 - - - 170,344
248,764 - - 79,404 328,168

Note: F5E -

(@  The Group applies the simplified approach for @ AR AL T Al
impairment of trade receivables, information WO R AR I B (L > DA 8 A R
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in T L BRI DR B R A B
Note 23. HrbfEE 23 ©

(b)  The credit quality of the financial assets (b) AW A AE ¥ 4 B H At HE i B

R BB A NI A ) HL

included in deposits and other receivables are

considered to be “normal” when they are not IR 2 S M EE 2
past due and there is no information indicating (ERE N RERIR/ S UN [
that the financial assets had a significant B s RS MR E 2 A5

FHBWAAIER] -

increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HMBEBER )
(@)  Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ MBEBEE
(iv)  Liquidity risk (iv) BB B

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor A £ B 2 BOR 7y € W1 B 2% B i
current and expected liquidity requirements to LMz i) EewE - LA
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of DRAS B ) A 5 2 ) B 5 £k A LA
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the JRE A HL A0 B R B 2 T
short and longer term. T2 o
The table below analyses the Group’s financial NREURAEB 2 B AR
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings e HEAR B I AL R - AR e 4
based on the remaining period at the balance HHEAZZH AT R EH
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. HEAT T o TR R N ER B A
The amounts disclosed in the table are the FARIT B BT E -

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Repayable Between Between
on demand/ 1and2 2and 5 Over
within 1 year years years 5 years
EZRER/

15T 1225 R 2E5ER SERLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARt RBR R AR

As at 31 March 2022 12022434310
Bank borrowing (note) RATE WD 482,595 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 58,998 27,016 10,159 -
Trade and other payables B9 B AR 172,574 - - -
714,167 27,016 10,159 -

As at 31 March 2021 202143 A31 H
Bank borrowing (note) BTER (WD 524,335 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAMR 94,415 40,383 24,598 23,597
Trade and other payables B RAM R IR 140,298 - - -
759,048 40,383 24,598 23,597

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BERBER 4
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HBEEEEGE
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) BB Em AR ()

Note: BF5E
Certain bank borrowings contain a repayment on A TR A SR DR R
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s AL RAT R REMIFATOE o ARPEA L
sole discretion. Taking into account the Group’s A 15 R R R BLER AT 1Y = 0T B
consolidated balance sheet, the directors do not 1% BRI AR RATE T
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise R RESEOR B AR S AR R
their discretionary rights to demand immediate SE I EE AR R S BRAT K o
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans DL 20 A B AR A st ) 22 o 0 3
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled T o A BB SO A AR R
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. The FIRERFLEAT K

analysis below shows the cash outflows based on the
scheduled repayment. The amount includes interest
payments computed using contractual rates.

Between Between
Within 1and 2 2 and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years

1T 1226R 2B3FER 3FELE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT

At 31 March 2022 202243 H31H 234,876 41,474 80,795 140,289
At 31 March 2021 R202143H31H 237,775 103,600 26,414 177,050
1 05 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BIBERBRER D
(b) Categories of financial instruments b ERIASE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Financial assets: SWMEE
Equity investment at fair 23T (B2 20 FC A 4 T o i 57 R
value through other A A3 £
comprehensive income 1,593 1,874
Financial assets at amortised cost: DABES AR R SR
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 Je HoA BRI Rk
and deposits P& 145,274 157,824
— Cash and cash equivalents — W& KBl &% EHY 112,121 170,344
258,988 330,042
Financial liabilities: o=l y=Li— g
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: LSS A 518 14 4 il £ i
— Trade and other payables — B 5 B FAb AT R K 172,574 140,298
- Bank borrowings —SRATRR 473,876 512,797
646,450 653,095
(c) Fair value (0 V&
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial ACSE B A R R O 4
assets and financial liabilities as disclosed in the BEReMABZRmEELS 82
consolidated balance sheet approximate their APEARAE -

respective fair value.

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio and this is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘shareholders’ funds’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

6.

B EBRE R (A1)
d EXRER
AR AR 14 AR A L AR R A £ A

I A A DA 5 R AR ] R 5 L
floRE o 5 A A SR I 2R - ) R AR I
R A 5 DL B A 2 BB
5o

ETQE%Tc%H*k%"ZIKZ*% A% 42 [ W]

o o S A B AR S AR e
F’ﬁtﬁng-‘ AT R R E DA
WARAETS o

ZK%EIU%E‘%%VE%%?EEZMQ%

o i B BL AR 4 U 5 IR DA AR A
”E‘Jr% o AR TR A AR (LR AR
HEEABEN R ZWE LI RE S
OB KRS EYEE o EA
MEGTAEBGEEEEAMERIIAD
A 4] -

The gearing ratio of the Group were as follows: AL R R E SR
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Bank borrowings (Note 31) SRATEER (MHEE31) 473,876 512,797
Less: W
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) Bl K I &S5 EY) (i 7E24) (112,121) (170,344)
Net debt TS 361,755 342,453
Shareholders’ funds JBE R 4 378,146 487,520
Gearing ratio ERLR 95.7% 70.2%

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(@

Fair value hierarchy

The Group’s finance department leading by the
Chief Financial Officer (the “CFQ”) is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
finance controllers report directly to the CFO. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the CFO.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

7.
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R RAEFF o FAB5 A L T 1] v B
B AR o AR, O BB
VRO AT e TR (2 ) o S
S i (L IE RS o HLA M b o o A5
ROHEAL S AHE o

WV 2 IE AR H T2
AR IF 28 5y i 8 — TE R T I
R THA U SO 2 (B - DU
B Z T (E R 22 7 (8 % SR B
il A B DA R A T (E 2 A
(EH T 2 d A B B =5 > W
T
S AT R R A T
FL A 2 (L $ H2h J0 R Y
SRS -

3 R T BT (A 35 4
i TR HEEW M THR
18 2 T F BR ) Ay (5% 1l fe
FE o w% Sk E B0l 28 B R
o] 48155 T B bk i A D
I B B A E Al R o W
R T RA T 2
EipN PN E SRR RS
WyE s B T RE WA
P32 o

H530E 0 — T Bk 2 TE TR A B
P53 I HR 45 T 1815 T B
BaEE > T E )
AL o I T REARTE
FHEHE M -

B () A RA A
2022 FFAFHR

108



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVERE®R
(@)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (@ 2AFEEEE
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and A A B 2 O T T 4 A SR B
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date GO E SR T o R R
of the event or change in circumstances that caused =R -

the transfer.

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: Fe NS SRR 2 R
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E 22 F3E EH

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT

Recurring fair value measurements ~ EEMALETE

At 31 March 2022 #2022%3A318
Financial assets SRER
Equity investment at fair value through ~ #&/AT- (B # H A2 it
other comprehensive income SUBRAI B E
- unlisted equity securities —F EiflA - - 1,593 1,593
Non-financial assets FERMEE
Investment properties By
— commercial building —TEMT - - 283,100 283,100
- - 284,693 284,693
At 31 March 2021 2021534318
Financial assets LREE
Equity investment at fair value through ~ #&/A T (B H A2 iz
other comprehensive income FIRRI B I B
— unlisted equity securities — I LA - - 1,874 1,874
Non-financial assets FERMER
Investment properties gy
— commercial building — T - - 296,700 296,700
- - 298,574 298,574
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for N BEHATEFEZET 2K
recurring fair value measurements during the year. 3 I ML A g o
1 09 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Financial assets

The valuation of unlisted equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income
was determined using a market-based valuation
technique. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies based on
industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate enterprise value of earnings before
interest, tax, depreciations and amortization (“EV to
EBITDA”) multiple and price to earnings multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the market capitalisation
by the profits of the comparable companies. The
multiple is then discounted for non-marketability.
The discounted multiple is applied to the profit of the
unlisted equity investment to measure the fair value
at each reporting period.

Non-financial assets

The fair value of the investment properties is arrived
at on the basis of valuation carried out by Savills
(Macau) Limited (“Savills”) independent valuer
which is not related to the Group. The Group’s
finance department reviews the valuations performed
by Savills for financial reporting purpose. These
valuation results are then reported to the Group’s
management for discussions and review in relation
to the valuation processes and the reasonableness of
valuation results.

The fair value of the investment properties were
arrived by using direct comparison method based on
market observable transactions of similar properties
in the similar conditions and locations of the subject
properties and adjusted to reflect the conditions of
the subject properties including property size and
property floor level. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

DFEFE

(b)

B E D FEFT ARG ERM

BT (B2 20 HAt 22 THT WA 45 91 R B B
B T 1A A (L 260 8 {6 ) 0 T 3 PR A4
{52 Ol 7 5 o Al (1 ZOR 3E FAR B AT
3 BUBL AR NG R E W LR
DNRAVAT] SRR ] R AT B Y
AR R A A SE B ERALE
BLIE ~ 37 85 B 4 819 i 8 A1) EE R (4 3
BB Mo 2 A58 - 8O L
AL B2 F] B (R BR DA A A
e AR B VR T DU B o R 4%
At ] > B BOTR JE b Ay
BB B A AR AP -

H s i B

BB Y SEI L V-8 4 oy BAR 42 [0
50 ) 988 S Al {1 P 265 — RSP S A S
(B A7 R ] [ — - e A7 ] o
AT AR AE B o 2% A B BA 5 B3R
A T 55 S B B — KT B AE S P
EATHIG(E - A RIS EAS R G A
R B R > DU A (R R A
KRB BLVEAE Al S AE R o

a7/ E NS EIEVELS SR LY/ES
IR L L2 A7 B AR (9 SR AL S Y (A
B SE TR B ) S 26 At A LA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DRVEFE@E
(c) Reconciliation of financial assets and non-financial (0 REIBATVEFEZEREERIK
assets measured at level 3 SREEYHR
Equity
investment
at fair value
through other
comprehensive Investment
income properties
BAYHE
ZERHM2ZE
Y 2 51 BR
BRHRE REME
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT WA T
At 1 April 2020 J#20204F4 11 H 5,444 519,800
Revaluation deficit transfer to equity 22 TR RRE P A e R (3,570) -
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B2 )% - #28 J st - (175,000)
Change in fair value recognised in JA AR 2 R Y AP E)
income statement - (48,100)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 #20214E3 431 H k2021454 7 1H 1,874 296,700
Revaluation deficit transfer to equity 22 T RE P B A e 1 (281) -
Change in fair value recognised in TR AR R A B R Y 2P (52 )
income statement - (13,600)
At 31 March 2022 R20224E3 H31H 1,593 283,100
1 1 1 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Valuation processes

The Group’s finance department is responsible for the
fair value measurement of financial assets required
for financial purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial department reports
directly to the CFO and the audit committee (“AC").
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and AC at least once every six
months, in line with the Group’s half-yearly reporting
periods.

The main inputs used in fair value measurement by
the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:

J price to earnings multiple

o EV to EBITDA multiple

o non-marketability discount rate
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
Financial assets

The most significant unobservable input is EV
to EBITDA multiple of 1 (2021: 9), and non-
marketability discount rate of 31% (2021: 31%). The
lower the EV to EBITDA multiple, the lower the fair
value of the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The lower of the non-
marketability discount rate or non-controlling interest
discount, the higher the fair value of the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

If the non-marketability discount rate increase/
(decrease) by 1%, it would result in (decrease)/
increase in fair value by HK$23,000 as at 31 March
2022.

7. AFEFEGE

(d)

(e)

HERF

A S [ B TS R P S R B R E
SR 0 Al g T H A (E > R
3B TAH o W BATS A P B )
W HE(CFO)V M 1 % B & (AC)[E
oo Byl A AL N E S
CFOHACHE D RS H B & —K > &t
iAok B R FAE B 4 T o

A TR FOE 0 3 R
FENE A BAGAEEAY

. [EEE R

. BB

FE VLBV B R
HERABEREQFENBE
A E

B RS AL A B S 1 A 2
fEERHE(20214F © 9) M31%M FE IR
BB (20214F 1 31%) - (T
(B BORRAIG > e 20 PR35 8 L Ath 4 TG
WA 2 51 R 1) JRE 43 Y 1 P(E ARG -
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5 o 28T 385 iR HAth 2 T WAL 4 571 R
) A7 45 S ) P 5

202243 A31H > W IEFREPERG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AVESEGR
(e) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (e) MHEMABBREAFLENBRE
(Continued)
Non-financial assets A
Significant Range of Relationship of
Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable unobservable
and key input(s) input(s) inputs inputs to fair value
EATUEE FUBE TOBERBARE
HERMRBREARE BARE BAREZER EATENEHE
2022 2021
and date of
transfer
e ER
Direct comparison method based on 1. Unit rate From HK$34,000 to From HK$17,000 to 1. The higher the unit rate,
market observable transactions of HK$207,000 per ~ HK$314,000 per the higher the fair value
similar properties and adjust to reflect square feet square feet
the conditions of the subject property. 2. Frontage 2. The larger the shop
The key inputs are: frontage, the higher the
1) Property size fair value
2) Unitrate
BRI OER T BE NG ENE 1. B BYLRE ERWILN 1. AR
i3 e L DVURSE S BH34,000E  iEWI7,000CE  ATHEBS
HARIL - B%207,000T  #7314,0007
RSN R 2. #i 2. HEBR - PR
1) Yt

2) AL

1 1 3 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors review the Group’s financial information mainly
from business nature and geographical perspectives.
From a perspective on business nature, the Group has
two reportable segments, namely watch retail and
watch wholesale trading segments. From a geographical
perspective, management mainly assesses the performance
of watch retail operations in (i) Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China and (ii) the rest of Asia.

Revenue represents sales of goods from watch retail
segment and watch wholesale trading segment. Sales
between operating segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those prevailing in arm’s length transactions.
The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”). This measurement
basis excludes unallocated income and net corporate
expenses.

Unallocated income represents gain on disposal of a
subsidiary. Net corporate expenses mainly represent
corporate staff costs and provision for senior management
bonus. Unallocated assets represent property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets
at corporate level, unlisted equity investment, deferred
tax assets and cash and cash equivalents. Unallocated
liabilities represent lease liabilities, other payables and
accruals at corporate level, bank borrowings, deferred tax
liabilities and income tax payable.

WA K2 EBE R

AN T 2 TS PR AN AT B
H oo ATEH TR SEH R R e A
A B A SR M 2 S R o (e SEBSVEE A
HE o AERA AR E R B SR T
S SRR SE S A0 o A B A
I8 F1y 2 P A% (i) A s~ TP R B B A i)
EEVIEN SN P s

WA 5 A S R A 20 0 L SR A B
HIS 4 T B o 7 AT ] A R A A
T BAT 35 08 F IR E AT B 22 B 2 e O
AT o A7 BUHE S B M) S e A i AR 9 o
FITEBIT)) SFAZ 7 48 2 65 - sHH
LM R S B 2R 73 FE WA B SR B AT B S
o

ARIT B A AE A 8 B8 2w A9 Icas
B A7 BT S 2 0 A I T R B TR
A B o A B R AC AL o R0 LR
4 L T Y 2 MR Rl - BLE)
ERAERREEE - F LRk M HE - B
HE R TE A DA B R B ) o Ry
HE 1Y) B AR 4 4R R i A R B R R HiAte
A I I HE B - BRAT AR - IR IE AL
HAM LB EH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022

8. WARZBMER

BZE2022F3831ALEE

Watch retail
HHRTE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest  wholesale
China of Asia trading Total
RAR =M Fikz
B KR Hepth & MEEK &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEEFT  B¥fFr  B¥Efr BB
Revenues from contracts with ERMBRMEERE15H
customers within the scope BEANTFEORE
of HKFRS 15
— Gross segment — 7R AR 242,664 198,748 392,540 833,952
- Inter-segment — 73 - - (141,445)  (141,445)
Sales to external customers HETIMREF 242,664 198,748 251,095 692,507
Timing of revenue recognition LON AL
— Ata point in time — {1 I ] 242,664 198,748 251,095 692,507
Segment results DS (72,797) (1,381) 45,839 (28,339)
Net corporate expenses SEAT B S (43,223)
Finance costs AT A (19,275)
Loss before tax BB AIERE (90,837)
Income tax expense RGN (15,623)
Loss for the year FEEBB (106,460)

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEER )
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued) BZE2022F3A318 LFE (#)
Watch retail
EHZE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Rest wholesale
China of Asia trading  Unallocated Total

&5 2MR M i 14
RE AR HEBHE MBER AAE &t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr B ERfr  BRfx  BRfix

Capital expenditures BAMER X (5,159) (2,387) (296) (1,276) (9,118)
Depreciation: g
~ property, plant and equipment = #13 ~ #85 Bk M (4,099) (5,499) (600) (14,710) (24,908)
~ right-of-use assets — S (29,108) (36,803) (6,540) (3,178) (75,629)
Impairment of: Wl
— property, plant and equipment  —#J3£ - #8 Rk (1,086) (14) - (9,367) (10,467)
— intangible assets —v s - - (2,722) - 2,722)
- right-of-use assets Sl 3 (8,051) @) - - (8,058)
Fair value change of investment X E¥I2E/A T-HEE)

properties (10,700) - - (2,900) (13,600)
Provision for inventories peateidi (2,275) (773) (2,756) - (5,804)
Inventories written off Peae il (757) (34) (74) - (865)
Segment assets I 375,063 138,205 254,438 414,324 1,182,030
Segment liabilities SMATE (88,008) (53,216) (83,857)  (572,201)  (797,282)

B () A RA A
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e R Y EE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021

8. WARZBMER

HME20214E3 31 H IFHEE

Watch retail
EREE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest  wholesale
China of Asia trading Total
- JD 4 CEN) Fi573
HE KpE HepE iR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB BT BT B¥fx
Revenues from contracts with BRPBHEEERE15H
customers within the scope BEANTFEORE
of HKFRS 15
— Gross segment — 7R AR 254,287 218,214 351,756 824,257
— Inter-segment — 3 HBIHE - - (117,990) (117,990)
Sales to external customers HETIREF 254,287 218,214 233,766 706,267
Timing of revenue recognition LON AL
— Ata point in time — P {1 R ] A 254,287 218,214 233,766 706,267
Segment results D EEE (75,145) 5,543 20,037 (49,565)
Unallocated income EHON 97,778
Net corporate expenses SEEATHOT M (75,393)
Finance costs BB A (28,710)
Loss before tax BB ATEER (55,890)
Income tax expense RG] (25,731)
Loss for the year FEEBB (81,621)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEER )
For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued) BAE202143 431 H IR (4
Watch retail
EHZE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Rest wholesale
China of Asia trading  Unallocated Total

&5 2MR M i 14
RE AR HEBHE MBER AAE &t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr B ERfr  BRfx  BRfix

Capital expenditures BAMER X (3,039) (744) (311) (59) (4,153)
Depreciation: g
~ property, plant and equipment = #13 ~ B85 Bk M (6,000) (7,454) (1,116) (13,279) (27,849)
~ right-of-use assets — AR (58,591) (40,208) (6,403) (3,181)  (108,383)
Impairment of: il
— property, plant and equipment  —#13£ - #8F Rik (1,300) (258) - (5,986) (7,544)
— intangible assets — v EE - - (5,583) - (5,583)
- right-of-use assets —fEmEEE (14,388) (1,288) - - (15,676)
Fair value change of investment X 124 T-HEE)

properties (15,300) - - (32,800) (48,100)
Provision for inventories peatecidi (2,168) (121) (22,596) - (24,885)
Inventories written off B (1,425) (54) 81) - (1,560)
Segment assets I 418,242 153,402 257,349 528,845 1,357,838
Segment liabilities o ER (111,019 (71,537) (80,054)  (600,631)  (863,241)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARZEHER )
Geographical information b & B
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment results by 223t 5 3 A 4R SO B o B SEARAN T

geographical area are as follows:

Revenue Segment results
LON 7 EBRAR
2022 2021 2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BWffr BT

Hong Kong, Macau and Arus ~ W R BB
Mainland China 341,221 343,832 (53,451) (54,215)
Rest of Asia CEVIBEN 73 351,158 362,122 28,742 30,125
Europe [Ef 7l 128 313 (3,630) (25,475)
692,507 706,267 (28,339) (49,565)
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other e b [ 40 BT 42 [ IR B S R A AR
than equity investment at fair value through other A T Wi 25 9] HE 11 B 4 HE S I R SE G TR
comprehensive income and deferred tax assets) by EEBIN T
geographical area is as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China ik ~ #[" & A8 509,516 600,058
Rest of Asia CERIRSS 31 o 77,059 123,703
Europe R 36,965 36,507
623,540 760,268
The revenue information above is based on the locations of i AR TS AR IR 2 R A AR R o
the customers.
These were no revenue transactions with a single external SRR - M IEAR [ AN B B A
customer which amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s AAEFBA R 10%8% A (20214F : 48) o

revenue during the year (2021: Nil).

1 1 9 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Geographical information (Continued)

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities

at the beginning of the reporting period:

WA K2 EREF (D)
wEER )

TR IIRIREA G B R E iR

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT oC

Sales of watches B 5 g 6k 2,164 451

Performance obligations

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the goods and payment is mainly on cash and credit
card settlement, except for wholesale customers, where
payment is due within credit period from delivery. As at

31 March 2022, the remaining performance obligations

(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are part of contracts

that have an original expected duration of one year or less,

the transaction price allocated to which is not presented
according to practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

JB I FAR R AT B R A > A R E L
Bl s G A RER - MABRE RN 1
AR R BRI AT 1220224E3 A 31
H 07 5 B 4 BUAT ORI R BT R T2 ) 7
LR FE I AR [ 2% — AR ELA N 15 20 10
—ER Ay o AR A TR O R A 1 5 BE R
HEE % o RS MR 38 B (E A

9. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS 9. EH(EE i
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Exchange losses [ifE 5. J5 1 (1,303) (6,060)
Fair value changes of investment BEW N T T)
properties (13,600) (48,100)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ) FAILi &
(note 32(a)) (Ff5E32(a)) - 97,778
Loss on disposal of property, YIS  HAs S
plant and equipment 3] (232) (826)
Gain on termination of leases I E A AR 3,803 310
(11,332) 43,102

B () A RA A
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ISR MR

10. OTHER INCOME 10. HAEKA

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT bioki K s
Building management fee income MEFE A LA 2,460 2,460
Interest income FE A 220 277
Rental income EERON 5,594 8,607
Rent concessions FHA W2 9,299 35,173
Shared service income ILZRBULA 14,400 16,941
Government subsidies (note) B A B (B 5T 8,424 31,246
Sundries A TE 2,552 1,671
42,949 96,375

Note: Bf5E -

7 2 8] 5 R SR 7 1 A B U A R > e
HEWE4.9554F # (20214 « #H27.90911 &) 43 Fll
SR~ RGP R B R R P R B A A £
R BIAIR -

Being government grants in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies,
of which HK$4.955 million (2021: HK$27.909 million) relates to
Employment Support Scheme provided by Hong Kong, Malaysia,
Singapore and Macau governments.

121

11.  FINANCE COSTS 1. BB

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT

Interest on: FIE
— bank borrowings —RATEK 9,118 13,377
— lease liabilities —HEAMRE 10,157 15,333
19,275 28,710

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

12.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax has been derived after debiting

12. BRBIAIEE

AL W R BLRT RS IR T A0BR 7 GEA) Wi

or (crediting) the following items in the income statement. HLIRIEE o
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT T

Auditor’s remuneration: A BRI 5
— audit services — IR 1,896 1,942
— non-audit services — AR 585 520
Cost of inventories sold and raw A BN R EHE AR

materials consumed 368,770 381,542
Depreciation of: #res -
— property, plant and equipment (Note 17) —¥/% ~ #25 XA (FtsE17) 24,908 27,849
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — i AREEE (i 5E19) 75,629 108,383
Employee benefit expenses (Note 13) i BAR A S (BF5E13) 181,270 173,696
Fair value changes of investment BB ZE A TR E)

properties 13,600 48,100
Impairment loss of: E
— property, plant and equipment (Note 17) —4¥)2& - #2% S a4 (k17 10,467 7,544
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — (AR A (M 5E19) 8,058 15,676
— intangible assets (Note 20) — I (M E20) 2,722 5,583
Loss on disposal of property, YIS - s St

plant and equipment 18 232 826
Gain on termination of leases HAEFE A A (3,803) (310)
Lease rental in respect of land and B b B i

buildings HAH B A
— short-term lease payments — BT 13,480 8,312
— variable lease payments A SE R B AT K 3,920 4,458
— rent concession (Note 10) — & (FEE10) (9,299) (35,173)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) W 5 MRk B (U (L 138 Te])

of trade receivables (Note 23) (B5E23) 2 (98)
Provision for inventories eys Yl 5,804 24,885
Inventories written off A EMIR 865 1,560

B () A RA A
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A RS R R B o

13.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 13. EERAXMH
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Salaries and allowances M SR 164,509 156,887
Pension contributions less forfeiture SRR IR GUBR T ) Y
utilised (note a) WUHER) (B sEa) 14,858 14,169
Others HoAth 1,903 2,640
181,270 173,696
(@) Pensions-defined contribution plans (@ Bk EHEMHAETE
The Group operates a retirement scheme under H%20004E11 H30H Sy 1k - A% H
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO R B T 3 AR IR 0 451 s [ R
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees B2 AR IREHE - B20004E12 11
in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000, H O > A 4 [ 5 7 o il 1 A BE 4 5t
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme is set B (MR wt#)) > AREEK &SR
up which is available to eligible employees of the & B (EHFEALAITEES) WEHES
Group, including executive directors of the Company. B o sRAE TR RO R o WCRIRIRE
No further employees and contributions have been ST SR A A 2 B R o AR I K AR
added to the ORSO scheme after the set up of MPF. B 1] SRR B R B SO R SR R
Contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group T it FHL A AR 2 B KPRESE © R
and employees are calculated at rates specified in o < 1 ) 7 LA A I ) G B
the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF Fef - WG I E I .
scheme and ORSO scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.
Meanwhile, relevant employees of subsidiaries AW LSS A RS > A5
outside Hong Kong contribute to the local pension LAl B 3 iR AR 4wt ) 4 s it
schemes, contributions to the local pension schemes Ao G AR R IR R BT R E
are calculated at rates specified in the rules of the M7KPREGE o ARG Rl 2 P BA
local pension schemes. The assets of the pension Sl 2 B R i B S B
scheme are held separately from those of the Group AEATEM o
in an independently administered fund.
For the year ended 31 March 2022, forfeited HME2022F3H31HILFERX > BB
contributions totaling HK$0.275 million (2021: PIER R B 352 i i S R AR ) R R
HK$0.456 million) arising from employees FHUEM0.2751H 8 70 (20214F - #E ¥
leaving the ORSO scheme, were utilised to offset 0.4564F #50) > B DAKE 45 A
contributions during the year. B o
123 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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g s b

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 13. EERAZH @&
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b HEEUESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the A B A AE [ 4% s N LR
highest in the Group for the year include one (2021: —% (20214F + &) #EH > HEme
two) director(s) whose emoluments are reflected in 15 207 B 1400 B H Sl o A AT A TR
the analysis shown in Note 14. The emoluments 7 H iR o R BT Y 44 (20214F - =
payable to the remaining four (2021: three) highest ) NLEZMEmT

paid individuals during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Basic salaries, allowances and B4 M REY A
benefits in kind 4,774 3,705
Performance bonuses RBIEAL 5,334 1,545
Contributions to pension plans PNt i DRE 210 168
10,318 5418
The emoluments fell within the following bands: P N[ S /NG g (| I
Number of individuals
AE
2022 2021
Emolument bands (in HK dollars) HrEAR A s H)
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 #H1,500,001 7T E ##2,000,0007C - 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2 000,001 7T E ##2,500,0007C 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 C £ #H3,000,0007C 3 -
4 3

B () A RA A
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A RS R R B o

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. ESEANRER
(@ Directors’ emoluments @ EE#E
The remuneration of every director of the Company is AR AR EEM T

set out below:

Emoluments paid or payable i respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or ts subsidiary undertaking;
FAEENRAARNERIERRNER

Emoluments

paid or payable

in respect of

director's other

services in

connection with

Remunerations  the management
paid or payable ~ of the affairs of

Basic salaries, ~~ Contributions inrespectof ~ the Company
alowances,and ~ toretirement  Discreionary  accepting office  orifs subsidiary
Name Fee  henefitsinkind  eneft schemes bonus as director undertaking Total
SGEL L
FATIENR
Bxffd AIREEN
Bife 2 Rite FEL S HfpER
ft4 e AR 5 BERL  ESRUME Ritime 4%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000

REfT 1iv v kv kv ki RRfn

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BZ2022 37318
B

Joseph C. C. Wong (] 100 750 4 - - - 091
Kwan ChiKin, Walace HiE 80 1,548 M 179 - - 3,455
Kiwong Yi Hang, Agnes Wit 1% - - - - - 1%
Ho Chi K, Jeff v EEE) 135 - - - - - 135
Wo Chi Man, Lawrence i) L) 56 - - - - - 56
Lai Kai Ming, Ricky i S i - - - - - i
Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas )~ ) - - - - - - -
585 2,098 75 179 - - 4751
For the year ended 31 March 2021 EF2021431131
Joseph C. C. Wong A 100 6% i) - - - 87
Kwan ChiKin, Walace Mg 80 1413 18 566 - - 2079
Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes Wi 13 - - - - - 1%
Wu Chun Sang ) L i) - - - - - %
Wu Chi Man, Lawrence (i WL Gl 135 - - - - - 135
Ho Chiin,Jeff &) 8 - - - - - il
586 2112 5 566 - - 330
1 25 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group.

(i) Mr. Wu Chi Man, Lawrence has retired by rotation
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company upon the expiry of his term of office on 31
August 2021.

(iii) ~ Mr. Lai Kai Ming, Ricky has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
from 31 August 2021.

(iv)  Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas was appointed as the
Company’s non-executive director from 20 October
2021. During the year, no directors’ remuneration
was paid to him in the capacity as director.

(v) Mr. Wu Chun Sang has retired by rotation as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
upon the expiry of his term of office on 28 August
2020.

(vi)  Mr. Ho Chi Kin, Jeff has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
from 28 August 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021, none of the directors waived their emoluments,
except for Mr. Joseph C.C Wong waived a portion
of his salary of HK$750,000 for the year ended 31
March 2022 (2021: waived salary of HK$812,000).

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available directors’ services (2021: Nil).

14. EBEFNRELR )

(@)

(b)

(o)

BEEME D

(i) HRIESCA R AR BT B

(i)  FARESCEAR20214:8 431 HALH
Jie 36 PR i (L 32 A A 2 0 485 57 FE A7
W o

(i) BBOSEA R 202148 H31 H S
(LB AN w S FEAT I 5 o

(iv)  EESRICAER20214E10H20 H %
fER AN E FRATEE S o 4R > %
7 0 DAEE S B 3 4 5 0 4 o

)  EFAEAR202048 H28 HALIH
Jie 4 I i {32 AT A 2 ) 28 7 FF 17 B
#HH o

(vi) TR R 2020H 8 H28 H#EZE
FE B AR N RIS AT D o

HE202243H31H &202143 A31
H R4 > A AT o] o 0 S 45
Pre Al 3G e A R B 202243 H31H
1E A BE ik 5 LR 4y 3 & W 750,000
JC(20214F « EH & HE812,000

Jb) °

EERNENRBERER

FER > MRS HE O S i BT ]
HRARAE | S B AR 1] (20214F © 4E) o

BRENEEREAE=TNF2NE

HE202293A31H ILEE > AR
S 48 8 T S RS T AT A 5 =
TAHCE (20214F ¢ ) o

B () A RA A
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14.

15.

127
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)) 14, EBEANRER H)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (d) FBBRUNES ZEEFEE2ZEFEE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies REABMBERASBRAZENR  £EX
corporate by and connected entities with such REMR S 2 ER
directors
During the year ended 31 March 2022, there are no BAE202293 A31 HIEF S > HEMEL
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements B %G E R 2 R I e B
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate T E e Ry 2 e N2 B MR K
by and controlled entities with such directors (2021: M58 5 % HE (20214F - M) -

Nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, () EBEXRS WRIAESRMEAFZ
arrangements or contracts
Except as disclosed in Note 34, no other significant BRI RE34 P 88 & b - A4 L A B4R
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation EERE > AN AN SR T AT AR ) e AR 4
to the Group’s business to which the Company was 2 S5 T A > W) 2 B 4 ]
a party and in which a director of the Company had HERHPHAERF G EELY -~
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, EERSEIE
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15, FrSHixH

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT

Current tax A HARLIH
— Hong Kong profits tax — FUEFIEL 2,841 2,905
— Overseas profits tax — MR 5,113 4,960
— (Oven/under provision in prior years — AR () b (356) 59
7,598 7,924
Deferred tax (Note 28) HEAERLIA (Ff5E28) 8,025 17,807
15,623 25,731




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

15.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022 is
calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
applicable tax rates, being the weighted average of tax
rates prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates, as follows:

15.

Frig®isc i ()

20224 B F A5 B0 Ty AR BEAG 1 E B i A
FERI2R16.5% (20214F 1 16.5%) 7IE © 4
FIAFBL 5 AR P5 A7 9 Ak w1 I SRR s 1 e A 48
VB 456 7 L 11 708 PR B SR o

A AR ] 2 HC R P A5 BRI JE 48 T 5 AY B
TH > B3 A 45 8l Lk ) 8 P B 3R O e
S8 2) I FHE R B BLE A 2 A - RENE N
T

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Loss before tax BRI 1R (90,837) (55,890)
Theoretical tax at weighted average T IMRET-155817.85% (202 14F
rate of 17.85% (2021: 13.35%) 13.35%) T it 3 ) 2 B (16,218) (7,464)
Tax effect arising from: BB LR
— Non-taxable income — S AL A (9,257) (59,442)
— Non-deductible expenses — RAT B B 5 12,106 49,344
— Recognition of temporary differences — FRERS A4 R IR R ) IR
not previously recognised T 827 5,497
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised — — f FI{4F o il w8 ) B JE i 12
tax losses 2,412) (2,313)
— Tax losses not recognised — RHERR OB R 1R 30,844 39,947
— Tax reduction — BT (46) -
— Others — HAth 135 103
— (Over)/under provision in prior years —IBEAERE R (R Z) ) (356) 59
15,623 25,731

The weighted average applicable tax rate is 17.85%
(2021: 13.35%). The increase is caused by changes in the
distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the respective countries.

JInRE ST 298 ARG R £517.85% (2021 4F
13.35%) © G0 T i AR 4L B A 25 B R 1Y
W6 B 0 110 Ja A1 2 i 8 B I 3 o
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16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BREE
Basic B 9N
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s o J B A i 4 DL A TR AR 2 ) R 2 1 L JRE
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by Ao A B Tl 1L R DA 2 AT 38 200 IR I HE P 3
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue HmiEHE

during the year.

2022 2021

Loss attributable to equity holders AN FIRE SR A N A 1R

of the Company (HK$'000) (& HAF-oT) (106,716) (81,890)
Weighted average number of ordinary E BT 4 BT 1

shares in issue (thousands) (LT BERT) 1,046,474 1,046,474
Basic loss per share attributable to the AN FIRERR 15 A A EAG 45

equity holders of the Company S H (AL

(HK cents) (10.20) (7.83)
Diluted e
Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 March BAE202143 431 H K202243 431 H IL4F
2021 and 31 March 2022 are the same as the basic loss & > A BBl 18 B O AR s 1R
per share amounts as there were no potentially dilutive FEARTR]D > TR /5% T A8 4 Ay SIf 6 Y A 48 0
ordinary shares in issues during two years. AL o

1 29 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% - WBREEE
Freehold, Equipment,
leasehold leasehold
land and improvements
buildings and others Total
MEEE
i HE #fE - HE
THREF EEARRHEM #m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETR
Cost o %S
At 1 April 2020 #20204E4 H1H 214,040 297,475 511,515
Additions NE - 4,153 4,153
Transfer from investment properties 14 B # &% (H3518)

(Note 18) 175,000 - 175,000
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32(a))  thi 8 Wt & 22 ] (3132 (a) (60,062) - (60,062)
Disposals/written off R - (48,995) (48,995)
Exchange realignment e 567545 2,714 6,169 8,883
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 J#20214£3 H31H K&20214F4H1H 331,692 258,802 590,494
Additions WE - 9,118 9,118
Transfer to assets classified as held =8 AR E T it H &1

for sale (Note 25) B (f3E25) (64,325) - (64,325)
Disposals/written off i - (20,027) (20,027)
Exchange realignment e 58 7 (2,197) (481) (2,678)
At 31 March 2022 #2022%3A318 265,170 247,412 512,582
Accumulated depreciation and RAHERAE

impairment losses
At 1 April 2020 #2020%F4 A 1H 115,793 264,407 380,200
Charge for the year AT 8,449 19,400 27,849
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32(a)) i it & A 7 (Ff332(a) (49,301) - (49,301)
Disposals/written off R - (47,909) (47,909)
Impairment loss (note a) L (Ffata) 5,986 1,558 7,544
Exchange realignment e 0. 2% 1,237 5,398 6,635
At31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 1202143431 H K%20214£4 A1 H 82,164 242,854 325,018
Charge for the year RAEFEHTE 11,820 13,088 24,908
Transfer to assets classified as held % /M8 A FFER L1 &)

for sales (Note 25) B (Ff3E25) (23,014) - (23,014)
Disposals/written off e iR - (19,787) (19,787)
Impairment loss (note a) BUE (k) 9,367 1,100 10,467
Exchange realignment [ 258 (1,404) (354) (1,758)
At 31 March 2022 ®2022%3A318 78,933 236,901 315,834
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 March 2022 #2022%3A318 186,237 10,511 196,748
At 31 March 2021 #20214F3H31H 249,528 15,948 265,476

B () A RA A
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Note:

(a)

As at 31 March 2022, carrying amounts of retail stores
assets represent property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$162.121 million and
HK$68.686 million respectively.

The Group regards its individual retail stores as separately
identifiable CGUs and the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs is determined with reference to their value-in-
use and fair value less costs to sell. Management carried
out an impairment assessment for the retail stores assets,
including property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets, which exhibited an impairment indicator. Given
the potential adverse impact on the performance of the
Group’s retail stores as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,
management performed impairment assessment for under-
performing retail stores. The carrying amount of the retail
stores assets is written down to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. The estimates of the recoverable
amount of self-owned retail shops were determined using
fair value less costs to sell approach. Meanwhile, the
estimates of the recoverable amount of remaining retail
stores assets were based on value-in-use calculations using
discounted cash flow projections based on the forecasts
approved by management covering the remaining tenure of
the lease, with 13% discount rate.

As a result, during the year ended 31 March 2022,
impairment of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$ HK$10.467 million and impairment of
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$ HK$8.058 million
were made as their carrying values are not expected to be
fully recoverable. Impairment loss was included in other
operating expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for
the recoverable amount as follow:

J Revenue: based on estimated timing on resuming
operations in all regions and the consequential effect
on the Group’s retail stores.

. Running cost: based on the estimated change related
to the Group’s cost saving plan and measures.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment pledged as security for
the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 31) amounted to
HK$155.421 million (2021: HK$217.23 million).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B #E R R MY
-
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWZE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
At 1 April R4H1H 296,700 519,800
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B & 42 « a8 s (F5517)
(Note 17) - (175,000)
Changes in fair value A PHEEE) (13,600) (48,100)
At 31 March #3A31H 283,100 296,700
The investment properties were revalued at the end of R A5 S AR R R A e ST
the reporting date and date of transfer by independent BEED ERRAGERG(E -
professionally qualified valuer.
(@ Amount recognised in consolidated income (@ REVERKBRTEINSHE
statement for investment properties
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Rental income EELION 3,709 6,511
Direct operating expenses from properties & EFHGILA MY
which generated rental income HAEH S (519) (340)
3,190 6,171

B () A RA A
2022 FFAFHR 132



133

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

(o)

Lease arrangements

Commitments for minimum lease payments
receivable on leases of the investment properties are
set out in Note 33(a).

The Group leases out retailed stores under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years,
with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond
initial period held by lessees only. Majority of the
lease contracts contain market review clauses in the
event the lessee exercises the option to extend. The
leases of retail stores contain minimum annual lease
payment that are fixed over the lease term.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessees’ option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

Pledge
The Group’s investment properties have been

pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings
(Note 31).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. FREEE
2022 2021

HK$/000 HK$'000

BT WA
At 1 April R4H1H 123,990 198,704
Addition N 58,257 52,103
Termination of leases HIEFESH (23,941) (5,621)
Depreciation charge for the year AR (75,629) (108,383)
Impairment losses (Note 17 (a)) WAE (f5E17@) (8,058) (15,676)
Exchange differences 8,78 R 2,974 2,863
At 31 March A3HA31H 77,593 123,990

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following

types of assets:

i

L e w8 A o R 0 R DL BB Y

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T AT T

Land use rights - Hb Al R A 1,032 2,288
Properties: Wk

— office premises —WANE 7,286 43,504

— retail stores —F 5 68,686 78,198

Motor vehicles IR 589 -

77,593 123,990

B () A RA A
2022 FFAFHR
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19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Lease liabilities of HK$91.028 million (2021: HK$156.519
million) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$77.593 million (2021: HK$123.990 million) as at 31
March 2022. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

As disclosed in note 3, the Group has early adopted the
Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, and applied the
practical expedient introduced by the Amendments to all
eligible rent concessions received by the Group during the
year. Further details are disclosed below.

For both years, the Group leases various offices and retail
stores for its operations. Generally, lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 3 years, but may
have extension and termination options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an
additional period after the end of the contract term. Where
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational
flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement
date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options, the future lease payments
during the extension periods are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. The potential exposure to
these future lease payments is summarised below:

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 19. FERABEEG
Potential future lease
payments under extension
options not included
Lease liabilities in lease liabilities
recognised (discounted) (undiscounted)
TEErHEaEPES
H’EN BRERETBERNRR
HEAERR) HEMRCREER)
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T BT AT T
Office WAE 2,095 27,571 12,592 20,859
Retail stores ZEIEH 2,968 940 9,323 23,836

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the
lessee. During the year ended 31 March 2022, there has
been no such triggering event.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note
32(c).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group leased
a number of retail stores which contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated from the
retail stores and minimum annual lease payment terms
that are fixed. These payment terms are common in retail
stops in the regions where the Group operates. During the
year, the Group received rent concessions in the form of
a discount on fixed payments during the period of severe
social distancing and travel restriction measures introduced
to contain the spread of COVID-19. The amount of fixed
and variable lease payments recognised in consolidated
income statement for the year is disclosed in Notes 12.

WA > E R AR N B £ ) 6 G g AR R
Bl LA R A - AS S B R R
THAMMERITH LR BRERE - RERE
20224F3 31 H IR > M A B
4 -

LB B L ) AR A0 R B RE3 2()
I -

AR ZE2022F3 H311LEE » AEMMEL
M2 T G - 07 A 2 I i T i A
A5 1 n 58 R B A B R B AR AR L
BTN o 3% 55 AT SO A 4 134 1
JITAE b JB L o A ASAE B > AN AR iR 8 1
I TR L SR I 4 98 17 T S S 4 AT AL 5C BE i
Jite 2% B ah] i e A ] DA R A5 3 0% =0k
BUH A 2 o AR Uk g5 SRR 2 [ e
A R AT SR A A B R 1 2D R o
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BREEE
Technical
Know-how  Trademarks Goodwill Total
BERM 5 [E5ES Fob)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ikt ATV {413 TV (44} I (44 I

Cost B
At 1 April 2020 ®2020F4A1H 74,895 84,334 9,279 168,508
Exchange realignment e 51,7 7 - 354 1,147 1,501
At 31 March 2021 and R202143 A31 B K 20214

1 April 2021 4B1H 74,895 84,688 10,426 170,009
Exchange alignment EE 31, 2% - 476 129 605
At 31 March 2022 2022638318 74,895 85,164 10,555 170,614

Accumulated amortisation and B HFERRE
impairment loss

At 1 April 2020 202054810 74,895 36,072 - 110,967
Charge for the year AT FE - - - -
Impairment losses AE - 5,583 - 5,583
At 31 March 2021 and 20213831 HK2021F

1 April 2021 4818 74,895 41,655 - 116,550
Charge for the year AR 5 - - - -
Impairment loss BE - 2,722 - 2,722
At 31 March 2022 2022838310 74,895 44,377 - 119,272
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 March 2022 M202263H31H - 40,787 10,555 51,342
At 31 March 2021 #20214E3H31H - 43,033 10,426 53,459

1 37 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment assessment for technical know-how

In 2015, in order to secure the supply of mechanical
movements in the future, the Group acquired CATENA SA,
a Swiss watch movement manufacturer, and recognised
an identified technical know-how of HK$70.816 million.
Technical know-how has been fully amortised in year
2020.

Impairment assessment for trademarks

Management assess annually whether the trademarks
exhibit any impairment by considering the economic
benefit generated from the trademarks. The recoverable
amount is determined based on a value-in-use calculation.
This calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets performed by management covering
a five-year period. Management determined the financial
budget based on past performance and its expectations for
the market development.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 0% (2021: 0%).

(b)  Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 0% (2021: 0%) which was considered reasonable

with reference to subsequent sales growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 16% (2021: 13%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of trademarks to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

Impairment losses on trademarks amounted to HK$2.722
million (2021: HK$5.583 million) were recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2022.

20.

RILEE (%)
ERE TR RE R

BT H AR W SR TR > AR ER
201 54 W iy - 8% £% 2F FE FICATENA SA >
S e R v kA S SE R A A 70,81 640
JG ° FA20204F > FZESER T A o

AR E R

TG 7 B P R A A R A 2 4R
Rt v AR R 2 BRI (R o W ] i A
RIFOEREE 2 FHR MR E - 25571 R
T AR 52 A UL gl 5 4 S ) 2 B BT 5
Pt 2 Tod il 3R 4 0 B T o A 2 I 2 T
R A 1 2 R B 36 T 455 5% i 2 TR T
SE BT

AP B 5 B AL A

(@)  FAVEHHE 7 A 40 T 4F TE B %) B 4 i 1
BRE0% (20214F : 0%) °

(b) IRIFEREHEMRRWAHEEE > H
TR A A TS AN IS R FE 75 0%
(20214F : 0%) °

(c) A B 4 3 TE A B A AR B R A
16% (20214 © 13%) © sZ YB3 7 i
T RS AR A B A 4 R
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment. The goodwill is
attributable to the watch wholesale trading operations.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
performed by management covering a five-year period.
Management determined the financial budgets based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 0% (2021: 0%).

(b)  Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 0% (2021: 0%) which does not exceed historical
growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 16% (2021: 13%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there was no
impairment on the CGUs containing goodwill (2021: Nil).
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21.

22.

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

21.

BEAVTEHEBEMZEWRRESIRHRG R
&

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Equity investment at fair value through B ATEB R A A T IR 51 R
other comprehensive income Ay 5 &
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value  3F b ili /A "l A& (A TH) 1,593 1,874

The above equity investment was irrecovably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the fair value loss
in respect of the Group’s equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$0.281 million
(2021: HK$3.570 million).

At B A B A W R A E A 1 AT
(B 3 HA 2 T WS AR 50 R > T i AR S 1
i I i AR SRS R

BE20224E3 131 H IL4EE > i HAl 2 6
WA i T 2 1 A B e - (B 3 3 Al 4 T
Wiz 4 270 R 1) I 47 45 2 T {1 5 ol s 8 B T
#0.28 11 L (20214F + B %3.5701A #
JL) e

INVENTORIES 22. FE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Raw materials JER R 187,109 185,934
Work-in-progress 1E 3 i 11,683 9,571
Finished goods BB 395,154 396,232
593,946 591,737
Less: provision for inventories W AR (333,267) (324,434)
260,679 267,303

The cost of inventories sold recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$368.770 million
during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$381.542
million).

M FE20224E3 A31 H L4 C iR 5B
S AN i K NN R e Ny
368.770{HE 0 (20214 : He¥E381.542M0 %
JL) °

B () A RA A
2022 FFAFHR

140



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BEZREMEKERR

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEAT T WA

Trade receivables, gross EWE Wk > 48R 83,678 79,424
Less: impairment loss (note (b)) W WA (M EEDb) (23) (20)
83,655 79,404

Other receivables Al B A R 7,298 12,603
Deposits i 54,321 65,817
Prepayments A RIH 5,223 4,797
150,497 162,621
Less: non-current portion W IETRB IR (14,757) (20,643)
Current portion TENE Y 135,740 141,978

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on

R 5L H 0 3 M 0 kB B R R e

invoice date is as follows: o
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
0-60 days 0-60K 39,081 35,947
Over 60 days 60K L 44,597 43,477
83,678 79,424

Note: FFaE -

(@)  The Group engages designated import and export agents (@)  AMEFIAM R E R AR o s
for the importation of products from the subsidiaries in BB I AR T Y BB A T o B
Hong Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The Do A 4 1 A Y 5 0 ) 55 1 )
balances due from and due to the import and export agents B EM BRI ERSE - BE
are settled on a back-to-back basis, and such balances are 202293 H31H » A48 B E YA IR 3K S e A5
repayable on demand. The Group’s trade receivables and HR 9B 45 JRE S B JRE AR 3 L 11 AR 45 6
trade payables include balances due from and due to the 33,2534 7T (20214F « #133.955
import and export agents of HK$33.253 million as at 31 {H# ) ©
March 2022 (2021: HK$33.955 million).

Other than the balances due from the import and export I B S R B A 28 o 1 AR PR A & R A1 - AR
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60 Bl T HBICE 5 SR h 8 52 B Ry
days (2021: 60 days) from the invoice date to its trade 60K (20214F : 60K) {5 FI -
receivables.

1 41 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note : (Continued)

(b)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by using a provision matrix to measure ECL. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, and customer type). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off when the
counter party is in severe financial difficulty and there is
no realistic prospect of recovering e.g. under liquidation or
entered into bankruptcy.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. Based on past
experience, management believed that no impairment
allowance was necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances were still considered fully recoverable. The
Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

Meanwhile, the Group applied general approach to
provide for ECLs for financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables under HKFRS9. The Group considers
the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data in calculating the expected credit
loss rate. As at 31 March 2022, the Group estimated the
expected loss rate for financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables is insignificant.

Movements on the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

23.

B 5 R HE AR

(b)

(#)

AR B TP 5% 0% B 1 T 488 (4 P A 4 3R
M7 - ARHE THRIE S - ATy
HLTR HAT BB I 15 DU (1) 5 b e DA %
F R R 2 AR % S B 2
I R S o AR B S S T RE A
B~ BN R BB (B DA B i i H AT
TETA BRI 2 BB R w] SRR
BRI DL LA B R AL IR DL o — AR
H o EAC G BT R R A A IR BT L
JRE SR % AN RE BT I W (52 5 3 T3 A
AR R ) BB MAIRAR & T LA -

380 0 L A Ol i ) R S 2 5 MR BEL 22 42 9
SE S AT > AP A I X 2 R
Bk oo IR IEALER > S BB IUIRIE /Y
R R A ERBGE > KA AT
DA Bolie ] > FR] e B o A 5 1 o 3
TELTBEAR o A% 312 NI g 5% 5 R e AT AT A
&

B[R] IR > A B [ M — R 9 A it A
5t Y B SR 9 T A 4 4 4 M At
JRE AT R R ) A S R TR e A -
AR A R FUAAE BRI R S
R Sl 0T I T AR T R A R
$ oo 82022453 A31H » AREEMEFHE S
T LAt 8 A U T T 650 45 1) 4 T 2 1) LI
R R A E K o

N 5 MR S R M S B I T

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

At 1 April r4HTH 20 112
Provision for impairment/ (reversal of impairment) (% i, (Bl 142 1) 2 (98)
Exchange realignment e 50,26 1 6
At 31 March #3H31TH 23 20

Trade and other receivables included amounts due from
related companies of HK$4.850 million (2021: HK$10.412
million). Details of amounts due from related companies
are disclosed in Note 34.

B8y N JHL At JRE 5 R L R A R W A D
MR s 4. 8501H BT (20214F - WS
10.4121E #o0) - MEU BB &) 3CE 70
B34 5%

B () A RA A
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EZRHEMEBYIRR

Note : (Continued) =

(d)  The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are (d) B G B AR R 2 B T (E e B W 2 5
denominated in the following currencies: e

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Hong Kong dollars i 53,314 73,631
Renminbi N 35,021 30,099
Singapore dollars BT 19,169 17,561
Malaysian ringgit FEAR P B4 31,531 29,837
Thai bahts B 2,784 3,097
Swiss francs Fig 11 B 945 736
Others Fofty 7,733 7,660
150,497 162,621

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. RERAEEEY
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Cash at banks SRATBLE 110,516 169,719
Cash on hand FHB & 1,605 625
112,121 170,344

Note: RisiE: -

(@)  The above balances mainly represent cash at banks. Bank (@  LHBREEEE LR A o SRATIEAKEREH
balances are deposited in banks with sound credit ratings to RAFTIORAE T RP AR RAF O SRAT A7k - DA
mitigate the credit risk. A5 Bk -
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 24, RERASEEYW D
Note: (Continued) A =
(b)  The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the (b) Bl BB G F AWML TR T -

following currency:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT ki
Hong Kong dollars ey 15,865 42,189
Renminbi AR 1,458 10,763
Singapore dollars EDIIE O 44,925 47,088
Malaysian ringgit 5y RS 34,929 53,873
Thai bahts TRk 6,092 10,593
Swiss francs ity L7 BB 910 797
Others HoAthy 7,942 5,041
112,121 170,344
(c)  The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and (ORI INY SR PN S PN T e
remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules R e ZE 52 vl I B E A 11 41 BEE A5 42 A HI B

and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the R RR o
PRC government.
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25.

26.

145

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 25. ABWRPBETHLEEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Land and buildings transfer from property 1 [ #73£ ~ $#h X
plant and equipment Bt T A 41,311 -
On 28 January 2022, the Group entered into a provisional 202241 H28H - AL B — 2 A 5 =
agreement with an independent third party seeking to 75 71 3L B I U W ek o DASEOR A O
dispose one of its properties and anticipates that the —IEYZE - N TR S IE R 202248
disposal will be completed by August 2022. Further on 8HSEM - HA% » BB EE 12010 &
10 February 2022, a sale and purchase agreement were JeE L > 12202242 A 10 H #5T H & Hih
executed, both parties have reached a consensus on the ik o ALEFIN20224E3 H E OB 11 217 &
selling price of HK$120 million and a deposit sum of TR o
HK$12 million was received by the Group in March 2022.
The directors of the Company expect that the fair value AR ) HE TR R S5 0 P (R B A
less costs to sell of the business will be higher than the A R B2 R BRI o Rk > B
aggregate carrying amount of the property. Therefore, no 7 HORT M IR B 2022483 1 31 H A A RR
impairment loss was recognised neither on reclassification WE R
of the assets nor as at 31 March 2022.
As at 31 March 2022, the assets classified as held for sale HE20224F3 A31H » ABUAFFEREH &
were pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings 1 KA T SR AT DU EORAT B3R (M G
(Note 31). 31) °
SHARE CAPITAL 26. KA
Number of
shares of
HK$0.1 each HK$’000
R B
0.1 0
et B H BT
Authorised: HERA -
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, R20204E4H1H > 20214E3 H31H >
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 20214F4H1H K202243H31H 1,600,000,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: CBAT AR IR A -
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, #20204F4H1H » 20214F3H31H
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 20214F4H1H 202243 H31H 1,046,474,025 104,647
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27. RESERVES 27. fRE

Property,
plant and
equipment
Share  Revaluation ~ Exchange  revaluation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ik
BitvaR  EffRR  EXBk  EfEH  REEN |
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT R EWT EW B R

At1 April 2020 202044710 1977 3,193 (96,215) 403,684 113,160 425,799
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (81,890) (81,890)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year 4R 2 1 (EifH) /g - (3,570) 42,534 - - 38,964
At31 March 2021 20213 A31H 1977 (377) (53,081) 403,684 31,270 362,673
At1 April 2021 202141 H 1977 (377) (53,681) 403,684 31,270 362,673
Loss for the year FER - - - - (106716)  (106,716)
Other comprehensive loss for the year ERif2mEs - (281) 2377) - - (2,658)
At31 March 2022 1202243 131H 1977 (658) (56,058) 403,684 (75,446) 273,499
Nature and purpose of reserves REZHEER AR
(@) Share premium @ R
Share premium represents amount paid by e 73 i 8 FBCOR PR T S A ) <
shareholders for capital injection in excess of par AT -
value.
(b)  Revaluation reserve (b)  EL5l#H
Revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net A A 4 T R R B LA
change in the fair value of financial assets held at (B A HCA 2 T A i o <6 2 Y A
FVTOCI at the end of reporting date and is dealt with F-E R B A o AR R EE4(h)
in accordance with the accounting policy in Note W2 Gt BUOREEEE o
4(h).
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27.  RESERVES (Continued) 27. f&#E A
Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) R MER AR #)
(c)  Exchange reserve ()  FEL G
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange EE S0 fabt M 6475 P A7 [ #8030 0 1 265 B
differences arising from the translation of the financial WK e A 2 ME SE 200 o (it IR IR
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt WEEE4(d) Prcer st BOR R

with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 4(d).

(d)  Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve ) W~ s R
The property, plant and equipment revaluation E B SR VA
reserve has been set up and is dealt with in PR IEM FE4(e)h A B AT A 2
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for S T BT R EOR B o

land and buildings held for own use in Note 4(e).

28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EEBIR
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax R SE Tl TE 7 SR AE B TH A AT AN T

liabilities is as follows:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Deferred tax assets R AL T 7,046 16,071
Deferred tax liabilities AR SE L IE A (26,690) (27,760)
(19,644) (11,689)
The gross movement on the deferred tax accounts is as RICHIIANR H &2 8 -
follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
At 1 April R4A1TH (11,689) 5,451
Charged to income statement (Note 15) ANl as 2% (M EE15) (8,025) (17,807)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32(a)) R 2w (KT EE32(a) - 539
Exchange realignment i il 70 128
At 31 March A3A31H (19,644) (11,689)
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 28. EIEBIR (A
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during A AR SIE S T N R AR A B ) OS5 TR
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of HRIRIBE5 vl v R Lo 1) R RIS T

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets ELERAEE
Provision for
unrealised Other
Depreciation profitin Tax Other ~ temporary
allowances  inventories losses provisions  differences Total
BERA
25N Hfy

FERE WEE  HEER ARG ERMEE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000
Bffn  RRffx  EEffn BRfx ERffn  ERffz

AtT April 2020 20204111 3,128 9,181 9,020 11,009 6,046 36,384
Charged to income statement EfRER (2,95) (4,744) (2,951) (7,263) (5,041) (22,954)
Exchange differences EiER 10 277 - 63 291 641
At31 March 2021 013 A3H 183 4714 6,069 3,809 1,9 16,071

At1 April 2021 1202154 1H 183 4714 6,069 3,809 1,29 16,071
Charged to income statement e bl & (99) (1,131) (6,069) (1,587) (216) 9,102
Bxchange differences ERER - 91 - ® ©) 7
At31 March 2022 12022631311 84 3,674 - 2214 1,074 7,046
Out of the unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,273.266 JIT 4 0 DA 1K A 2R R R 2 R T R B T s
million (2021: HK$1,135.778 million) carried forward, R B WENE1,273.26600 80 (20214F ¢
an amount of HK$935.551 million (2021: HK$854.001 WH1,135.778{E 8 o0) > HhiH935.551
million) can be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining fEE 7T (20214F : #H854.0011F &5 7T) 7T i
HK$337.715 million (2021: HK$281.777 million) will FREAZS - HERWEH337.715(E 80 (2021
expire in the following years: A N 28177718 B D) AEAE T 51 R JiE

i
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 28. EFEBLIE (4
Deferred tax assets (Continued) BB IREE (#)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
In the first year 14 79,620 55,804
In the second year B4 53,387 63,156
In the third year Exkis 37,955 47,693
In the fourth year A 35,511 41,837
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive S5 R 04F (B4R E W 4R) 131,242 73,287
337,715 281,777
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of A T AE — B IRp [H] 1A 78 A sl 1860 B Jag 2 =)
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have 3 FLAR W] R 6 125 4 15 18 B0 1L iR LA 8 H
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered B R 48 - S A 5 S AR k% 45 s 1H e
probable that taxable profits will be available against AR AE R T E
which the tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHBESE
Revaluation
of property,
Depreciation plantand  Right-of-use
allowances equipment assets Total
VERE: 1
TEEE RRBER ERAREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R R R R T
At T April 2020 202054 H1H 7,144 23,458 2,331 32,933
Credited to income statement PN (1,527) (1,836) (1,784) (5,147)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32(a)) A R (fE32() (539) - - (539)
Exchange differences HE 5 2% 545 - (32) 513
At 31 March 2021 202143 A31H 5,623 21,622 515 27,760
At April 2021 2021444 1H 5,623 21,622 515 27,760
Charged/(credited) to income statement Bk GEA) s % 189 (1,284) 18 (1,077)
Exchange differences I 58 748 - - 7 7
At 31 March 2022 202243 H31H 5,812 20,338 540 26,690
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HESE
2022 2021
Present Present
Minimum value of Minimum value
lease lease lease of lease
payment liabilities payment liabilities
RiE BREHE 518 RIGHE

BERE AEERE  HEIE SUHZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEATT BT EWT WP

Minimum lease payment due: B R B3 -
— within one year —14ER 58,998 55,338 94,415 86,371
— more than one year but not exceeding ~ — 1 {H24F R
two years 27,016 25,712 40,363 35,971
— more than two years but not exceeding ~ — 2 H54F
five years 10,159 9,978 24,598 16,513
—more than five years —5EDIE - - 23,597 17,664
96,173 91,028 182,993 156,519
Less: future finance charge W RAEH ST (5,145) N/A (26,474) N/A
Present value of lease liabilities HEAEHE 91,028 91,028 156,519 156,519
Less: Amount due for settlement within W 2T N EAS A
12 months (shown under current (RIRE) AN 251
liabilities) (55,338) (86,371)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 121 H {2 5| {1 455 458 35,690 70,148
The lease liabilities are denominated in the following HEABREREImT
currencies:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Hong Kong dollars ke 41,079 88,575
Renminbi NG 13,575 13,648
Singapore dollars BT 18,661 24,233
Malaysian ringgit LS RS 14,881 24,588
Thai bahts ek 2,832 5,475
91,028 156,519
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. BEZRHMENERRN
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T

Trade payables (note b) JREASH B2 B Bk (it k) 71,388 60,185

Contract liabilities (note ¢) HHARE HEEo 1,280 2,164

Other payables HoAth EAH R K 60,431 27,603

Accruals JERT 2 1 47,535 58,772

180,634 148,724

Note: B

(@)  Trade payables are unsecured and usually paid within 30 (@) FEATE 5 HRER A S - 28 R R TERR A 30
days of recognition. HASAT -

(b)  The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice (b) k5 H AT Y RE AT B2 B MR R MR 6
date is as follows: T

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEATT bk

0-60 days 0-60K 34,348 24,027

Over 60 days 60K LL 37,040 36,158

71,388 60,185
Trade and other payables included amounts due to related B2 S o A BB AT R 458 R AT BT ) 3K
companies of HK$19.267 million (2021: HK$0.273 THHE M 19.26710 87T (20214F : #50.273
million). Details of amounts due to related companies are B8 TT) o FEAT B BB 2 WL RE 15 A B

disclosed in Note 34. 34455 -

(c)  Contract liabilities include advances received from ()  EHIBAEAFE RS AT B ok A S U AY 46
customers. The decrease in balance of contract liabilities is I o G &) A EEREC ) B A & AT
due to the decrease in advances from customers as at year HIEW D P EL -
end.
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 30. EZRHEMENKRR G
Note: (Continued) A =
(d)  The trade and other payables are denominated in the () Eo KR RS B RS

following currencies:

2022 2021
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT e TH
Hong Kong dollars i 90,572 62,737
Renminbi NG 28,441 27,103
Singapore dollars Brimigoe 7,703 7,271
Malaysian ringgit FEAR P B A 11,833 15,006
Thai bahts B 7,379 7,783
Swiss francs Fiti 2 B 7,968 8,591
United states dollars E 23,475 17,855
Others HoAthy 3,263 2,378
180,634 148,724
31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. S|ITER
2022 2021
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Bank borrowings, secured RAT R > HKA 473,876 512,797
Note: B sk -
(@)  The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows: (@)  ALEESATE A ARG T
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Repayable on demand and within 1 year JESR AR S — 2N 473,876 512,797
(b)  The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for the (b)  CARAMAR ERAT DASE A SE [ 414 T 15 Y
Group’s bank borrowings are: FEMREEIT
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
liFs BT BT
Property, plant and equipment LERE G 17 155,421 217,230
Investment properties e e/ S 18 283,100 296,700
Assets classified as held for sale SRR R A 25 41,311 -
479,832 513,930

B () A RA A
2022 FFAFHR 152



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

31. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 31. MITERGAE)
Note: (Continued) =
() The bank borrowings of the Group are denominated in (c)  AREEMNRITERUEITCEHE -

Hong Kong dollars.

(d)  As at 31 March 2022, weighted average effective interest (d)
rate per annum for bank borrowings was 1.8% (2021: 2.3%).

R20224E3 H31H » $R1T BRI A1y
BHAEM 251 .88 (20214F © 2.3)8) -

32. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 32. HEBEEHRERMET

(@ On 6 January 2021, the Group disposed 100% of its (@
entire equity interest in STL Properties Limited (“STL”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group for a cash
consideration of HK$107.965 million.

Details of net assets of STL at date of disposal were as

202141 He H > ARSI & MAUE
HE107.96514 8 0 & A E B
EARAF (REBRNEEME A A
I 2 H A RE -

EOLY A R RN A HIE 5 &

follows: EFEHIR
2021
HK$'000
AT T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) W - HEE A (BHsE17) 10,761
Deposits and prepayments P KA OH 2
Income tax payable JEAS 5Bl (37)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 28) TEFEFL TE A AR (B 5E28) (539)
Total net assets disposed HENFEELT 10,187
Consideration RE
Cash consideration BN 107,965
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEM B AR R WS
Cash consideration received W B 1 B 4 R AE 107,965
Net assets disposed I (10,187)
Gain on disposal HERNKE 97,778
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEENBRERA
Cash consideration received W2 ) B 4 A0 107,965
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32. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 32. ZEBERERMT )

(Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)) BMETBHELENEKESH
Analysis of liabilities arising from financing activities ASER D % BT 7 47 B il 0 B A Y
and the movements in liabilities arising from BTG5 I Tl 1S B i A AR A 1
financing activities for each of the years presented. Br
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings Total
HEEE BITER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
ki il ki
1 April 2020 R202044 11 H 295,561 651,449 947,010
Cash flows Bens (191,855) (138,652) (330,507)
Non-cash flows FBEnE 46,127 - 46,127
Exchange differences BEE 582540 6,686 - 6,686
31 March 2021 202143 H31H 156,519 512,797 669,316
1 April 2021 ®20214F4H1H 156,519 512,797 669,316
Cash flows Haiia (99,392) (38,921) (138,313)
Non-cash flows B 30,717 - 30,717
Exchange differences T 5. 3,184 - 3,184
31 March 2022 202243 H31H 91,028 473,876 564,904
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (0 HEZRESRLEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for FIAGZEEB SR ERFMARHAES
leases comprise the following: FESRR
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Within operating cash flows S B B B R A 18,258 (7,070)
Within financing cash flows T il T B B < U B 99,392 191,855
117,650 184,785
These amounts relate to the following: EEX S INNE
Lease rental paid O ARS8 117,650 184,785

B () A RA A
2022 FFAFHR 154



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

33. COMMITMENTS 33. AiF
(@) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group (@ THAHENEXHE(XREEAERY
is the lessor) #HA)
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of AT B AR T 08 SRk R A
certain land and buildings are as follows: WA e AT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Investment properties REMHE
Commitments for minimum lease AHE B A AT SR N
payments receivable in relation to F1%) % A e I B W L <5 A 2
non-cancellable operating leases are N
payable as follows:
— Not later than one year — 14K 4,404 3,794
— Later than one year but not later than — 1B IH54E R
five years 3,918 4,200
8,322 7,994
Properties JES
Commitments for minimum lease AL BTEA AT S A T
payments receivable in relation to F18 A e I IR Wi RELAEL 2 A
non-cancellable subleases of operating ~ #HUIF :
leases are payable as follows:
— Not later than one year —T4EX 479 1,010
— Later than one year but not later than — 1B H5ER
five years 230 384
709 1,394
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group b)) TABENEERS (NEEEAK
is the lessee) HA)
The Group entered into certain short-term leases A A 8 By s T RN AR AR G AR RT
for office and retail shops. As at 31 March 2022, FITHA) o 202243 A31H » 5%5%
the outstanding lease commitments relating to these e 2 T T T A B ) R R AR
office and retail shops are approximately HK$20.717 ARIEX Ry s ¥20.7 1748 8 (20214F -
million (2021: HK$5.511 million). WS 51 14E ) -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BEBALRS
As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, Yee Hing 202243 A31H &202143A31H » 3
Company Limited held 855,200 shares of the Company LA BR 2> w3 % FLFS B 2> W Active Lights
through its subsidiary Active Lights Company Limited. Company Limited$#H 42 7]855,200
55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing i = Klayze Holdings Limited PAfE 2% —JIH Y
Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, TEERE(MEFL)) 2 ZiE AR fr A ILA
which is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. R R A H AT I 2 55% i o
Joseph C. C. Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust, therefore B a oy R e P NI € & Y R ik
deemed to be interested in 855,200 shares of the Company 15 RE A 76 BLAT BRAA W) 2 HE 45 T A A8 2 )
through the Trust's interest in Yee Hing Company Limited. 855,200t HE 4
(@) Significant transactions with related parties (@ HEEBALETZEARS
Apart from disclosed elsewhere in the financial % B 75 ke LA R 23 BT B 41 - )
statements, the following is a summary of the 2o 7 B T BELAT TR R N b 2 TR BT A T Y
significant related party transactions carried out in the HRZGWME > Z5F 525 A G
normal course of the Group’s business. The related H S5 AT o BRI 4R A
parties are entities which have directors in common A EIEA LR R R -

with the Company.

(i) Provision of services to related companies () [ B2 AR R T

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT

Building management service PISEE B (M 5Ea)
income (note a) 2,460 2,460
Shared service income (note b) L PRBARA (FFFE b) 14,400 16,941
Rental income (note ¢) HE A (i) 4,292 3,530
Royalty income (note d) FrRTHESE B (FTd) 133 333

21,285 23,264

B () A RA A
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ Significant transactions with related parties
(Continued)

(i)

Provision of services to related companies
(Continued)

Note:

()

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into a renewal agreement with
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited
(“MPIL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yee
Hing Company Limited, for the provision of
the following services for the period from 1
April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (2021: 1 April
2019 to 31 March 2022):

(i) contract administration with respect to
contracts entered into between MPIL
and third parties from time to time;

(i) property agency liaison and tenancy
management;

(iii)  management of the property manager of

Stelux House; and

(iv)  other miscellaneous administrative
services.

The fee for the provision of the above
services was agreed at HK$205,000 (2021:
HK$205,000) per calendar month during the
agreement period.

The Group provided administrative services
to a related company which has directors
in common with the Group. Shared service
income was charged at cost basis allocated
based on the counterparties’ usage of each
type of service, taking into account factors
such as headcount and the number of stores.

The Group provided leasing services to related
parties which have directors in common with
the Group. Rental income was charged to
related parties based on the occupied area
ratio times total actual costs incurred.

The Group provided licensing services
to related parties which have directors in
common with the Group. Royalty income was
charged at 10% of the amount invoiced by
suppliers or vendors of the counterparties.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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34. BEBALIXRS (#)

(@ HAEBRBAIETZEARS #)

(i) 1A B L AP IR ()

(a)

H

A A [ A A R N ) B 3 L
PR | A B 2w B
WA A A A (T ])
201944 A1 H 20224
331 H R LT IR ET
SE R (20214 ¢ 1201944
HA1HZE20223H31H) :

()  WIEEELES = 5 REFAT
I EHTZAHT
s

(i) WEAHGELAHE

EH

EHESLWHET LY
FEBAT K

(iii)

(iv)  HAFTEURE -

i R Tk A A > Rk B
e JIR S 0 A7 B 2 2 1 B
A #E%205,0007C (20214F =
##5205,00070) °

A ] i) BELAS 42 B B A G TR
A B I N L R A B R
B o LTEIH TR AR IR
58 5 3§ 7 ) 45 TR 19 1B
IERCE N =WWN ]
B4 PR R RAS -

A 4R ] [r) B AR AR [ B A 3L 1)
A B N L R A B
B o FH G SO A R B A o THT A
e UL 1 7 AR 1) B PR AR AR
Gl NS R

A 4R ] [r) B AR AR [ B A 3L ()
R0 ) NSRS R
FEATAR B o R A0 T 2k
Nk 78 22 o O 2
JRE 7 B L 9 B BB (L9 10 %
I -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. BEMALRES H)
(@) Significant transactions with related parties (@ HEAEBBAIETZEARS #)
(Continued)
(i) Purchases of services from related parties (i) G BN LA B R
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Rental expenses (note a) 4 S (K eEa) 10,487 10,617
Lease management expenses (note b) & & ¥R 32 ) (i kb) 420 600
10,907 11,217
Note: BFGE -
(a)  During the year, certain subsidiaries of the @  FIN s AR T E A A
Group entered into tenancy agreements BN A BN LT S B
with the following related parties for office Wk - I A W - 5
premises, stores, warehouses, showroom and i~ A~ PRSI E
car-parking spaces: i
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
MPIL W2 8,437 8,245
Other related parties oAt A B A L 2,050 2,372
10,487 10,617
(b) A related company provided lease (b)  —Z A B A W) 1) A 4R 4R
management services to the Group. The fee PR AT BIAR 5 o P2 a% 55
for the provision of such services is charged at I 5 B4 2% T A T e 0 o A
pre-determined amount during the agreement FEE W B YOI -
period.

B () A RA A
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. BEBALIXS#H)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EEEBEEALZENER
The balances due from/to related companies as B 523 K3 0 7 45 85 1) B WA B JE A+F I e
disclosed in Notes 23 and 30 are unsecured, 4 ) [ B TR A AR - fp R R
interest-free and repayable on demand. The related SRABER o BRI/ )45 BLAC SR B 7 A 3L
companies are entities which have directors in )38 2 T -

common with the Group.

() Key management compensation (0 FEEEEHRM
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000

b 3 AT

Salaries and other short-term employee 34 & HAth 5 #1ig & 18 FI

benefits 7,226 5,088
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme R {ARFH# it 115 116
7,341 5,204
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. HARAME
As at 31 March 2022, a subsidiary of the Company had 202243 A31H » ALw — R E A FA
contingent liabilities in respect of bank guarantees given to SR AL 5. 29600 7T (202148 « ¥
landlords in lieu of rental deposits for certain retails shops ¥ra.810fA870) - W ET ML TF
and a supplier amounting to approximately HK$5.296 B T Sl A 4 e 4 e — [H] B PR £ (SR AT
million (2021: HK$4.810 million). Pk o
At 31 March 2022, the directors do not consider it A20224E3A31H » EH AR A Lk
probable that a claim will be made against the Group & PR 1 A5 B 2 H R 2R 119 T R

under the above guarantees.

1 59 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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36.

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE AFEEEBERFEEB X
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company RAEEEER
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5E BT AT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary B 2 W 3 37 - -
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE ST BfF 88 2  0E a 766,848 766,848
Trade and other receivables & 5y Je HoAth FES AR 2k 215 233
Cash and cash equivalents B4 Bl 2,046 2,084
769,109 769,165
Total assets EERE 769,109 769,165
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 104,647 104,647
Reserves b5 b 34,714 34,714
139,361 139,361
Total equity IR
LIABILITIES 8fE&
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables 5 B HARFEAT K 2,578 2,584
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST o e 2 W 3 H a 627,170 627,220
629,748 629,804
Total liabilities BERHE 629,748 629,804
Total equity and liabilities KREREERE 769,109 769,165

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 23 June 2022 and was signed on its

behalf.

Joseph C.C. Wong

el

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
FIERITIHAA#,

FHREIE20224F6 ] 23 H i 28 A\ A

HERAMK -

Wallace Kwan Chi Kin

o R B

ity ==

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

TTIEHH L BB

B () A RA A
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36. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 36. AAIEEAGBRHEEEDR B

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B 5
(@)  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, (@) M S REAST B 2 04 R IE A SRR AT - e
interest-free and repayable on demand. SRR A -
(b)  Reserve movements of the Company (b) 2\ EIfkfh s E
Share Retained
premium profits Total
;&N RE
=g EZF g
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
WAoo BT WAoo
At 1 April 2020 R202054H1H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year Gy Al - - -
At 31 March 2021 A20214E3 A31H 1,977 32,737 34,714
At 1 April 2021 #20214E4 71 H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year FR R - - -
At 31 March 2022 #202243H31H 1,977 32,737 34,714
1 61 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. XEMBATE

The principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 and 31 March B E2022F3 31 H K%20214F3H31H » &

2021 are: R0} AR U,
Percentage of equity
Particulars of attributable to the GrOup
Place of share capital issued K@
incorporation/ BRTRE BENEDL
operation Principal activities Number Value
KT, S TERR BE  SREE 2022 2021
Investmenti% &
Stelux Holdings International Group  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited PR LTS HE B
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HK$1 100 100
BOLTE R AIRA A s fRERR L AP
Stelux Investments and Properties British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited KRR facsidl 1%
Thong Sia (BVI) Company Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
SRR SRR (ES
CC Group (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
b A gids fRRER 1%
Stelux Watch Group (BVI) Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
SR L SRR B3
City Chain (Bermuda) Holdings Bermuda Investment holding 12,000 Us$1 100 100
Limited AHE facvidl 1578
Stelux Watch Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Investment holding 2 HK$1 100 100
Limited Hik vl b
Property#) %
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
il B YN i UESIEcT AP
Fulani Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
i ESS AP
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Company Limited it YR E #1007

OB () A RA TR
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37.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. EEMBAT )
Percentage of equity
Particulars of attributable to the Group
Place of share capital issued SEfRE
incorporation/ BRTRA ERMEIL
operation Principal activities Number Value
ERAg ) IREH B8 SRER 2022 2021
Property (Continued)
nx (&)
Stelux Properties Agency Limited Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HK$1 100 100
b A A A ik management iciab
ES Y S
Stelux Properties Limited Hong Kong Property management 500 HK$100 100 100
B EARAR Ei ESgt #1007
Retailing and tradingZERE 5
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
o ] B A PR 2 ) {5 HHEE #1007
City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
L% T EHEE 188
City Chain (Macau) Company Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
Limited A HHTE TR
P R GARFD) A R A ] 5,0007¢
City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S§1 100 100
Hnse BT A
City Chain (Thailand) Company Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited ! T 10045k
210,000 Baht100
10045k
Pronto Watch SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Bt Sk 4] 1,000%i £
&R
Solvil et Titus SA Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
it FEE 1,000% 1
R
CYMA SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100,000 SFr1 100 100
Bit: TG it
il
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37.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. EEMBAT )
Percentage of equity
Particulars of attributable to the Group
Place of share capital issued SEfE
incorporation/ BRTRA ERNEIL
operation Principal activities Number Value
R S TEER B8 SREE 2022 2021
Retailing and trading (Continued)
TERESZ (B
Lissignol Sarl Switzerland Watch distribution 200 SFr100 100 100
Bit: Sk 1005 £
il
Stelux International Licensing Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 Us$1 100 100
Limited B licensing (ESD
FRAH R
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HK$1 100 100
AR AT i management itab
e e
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
TS A IR ] & L EY] R0
Thong Tai Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Watch distribution 2,000 HK$1,000 100 100
R FARA i ] #1000
Stelux Trading (International) Hong Kong Watch distribution 2 HK$1 100 100
Limited i Sk b
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte  Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S§1 100 100
Limited A Sk L b
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 97.6 97.6
Y T i 187
Thong Sia (Thailand) Limited Thailand Watch retailing and 20,000 Baht100 100 100
R distribution 10078
SR oo
Universal Geneve SA Switzerland Watch supply chain 5,000 SFr1,000 100 100
Bt management and 1,000%i1:
distribution ]
e e
Catena SA Switzerland Manufacture of watch 1,016,667 SFr1 100 100
B t: movements i LR
TS RIER

B () A RA A
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37.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37. XEMBRAT )

Percentage of equity

Place of attributable to the Group
incorporation/ KB
operation Principal activities Paid up capital R
EMRY S TEEH HRER 2022 2021
Retailing and trading (Continued)
ZEREZ (@)
Stelux Thong Sia (Guangdong) The PRC (foreign-invested ~ Watch retailing, trading HK$234,500,000 100 100
Trading Limited commercial enterprise) and related services H234,500,0007C
EDLHIR (RR) P AR AR R PBRRE GMERE  EETE B RHR
HERE) s
Stelux Thong Sia (Shanghai) Trading ~ The PRC (foreign-invested ~ Watch retailing, trading US$16,510,000 100 100
Limited commercial enterprise) and related services 16,510,000 7
Bt () AR A A TR TEARE GMEEE  EETE - B RAR
[GESeS) W
Baogjing (Chongging) Trading The PRC (foreign-invested ~ Watch retailing, trading HK$51,000,000 - 100

Limited © commercial enterprise) and related services i#51,000,0007C

HEER WEARAA RERERRE GMERE  EREE - HO LR
MR R
Note: R
(a) Non-redeemable preference shares (@) ASETHE AT
(b)  100% equity interest included 88% of equity interest and a (b)  100%7HE % £ 45 88 % M Sz LA B A 52 A hE
right to purchase 12% of equity interest 1 2% e

(c)  Deregistered on 09 June 2021 () 202146 H9H 514
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